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          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Good morning.  I

          3  am Council Member Stanley Michels, Chairman of the

          4  Environmental Protection Committee.  I want to

          5  welcome all of you to this hearing on two, what I

          6  consider, vital pieces of legislation dealing with

          7  the City's Hazardous Substances Emergency Response

          8  Law.

          9                 The potential danger posed by

         10  hazardous materials demands that we do all that we

         11  can to ensure that our citizens and our emergency

         12  response personnel are protected from those who

         13  improperly store or illegally dispose of these

         14  substances.  As we know, even small amounts of

         15  hazardous substances can cause tragic consequences

         16  when dumped or abandoned.  Everyone here today, I am

         17  sure, remembers the tragic incident involving the

         18  New York City Sanitation worker, Michael Hanly, 49

         19  years- old, who was killed in 1996 by a small

         20  quantity of hydrofluoric acid in a discarded

         21  container, and as I understand they still have not

         22  determined who threw, who is responsible for that,

         23  and it was a tragic thing, it was a very sad day for

         24  the City.

         25                 Imagine, if you will, the tragedy
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          2  that could result from the dumping of much larger

          3  quantities of substances like this into our densely

          4  populated environment, or the terrible fate of

          5  firefighters or other emergency response personnel

          6  who enters a site that unbeknownst to them, is

          7  stockpiled with these deadly materials.  We must do

          8  all we can to discourage the users of these

          9  materials from dumping them illegally and to make

         10  sure that those who must store these materials in

         11  their facilities report all of these substances so

         12  that the Department of Environmental Protection and

         13  to the Department of Environmental Protection so

         14  that our City personnel know what to expect in an

         15  emergency.  In Intros. 193 and 692, both help us to

         16  accomplish both of these goals.

         17                 Intro. 193 calls for establishing a

         18  computerized database containing information

         19  relating to the storage and handling of hazardous

         20  materials and hazardous substance and emergency

         21  response to the release of hazardous substances into

         22  the environment.

         23                 Intro. 692 calls for the increase in

         24  penalties, including the creation of criminal

         25  sanctions, and I repeat, criminal sanctions for
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          2  those violators who continue to operate with

          3  disregard for the requirements of the New York City

          4  Hazardous Substances Emergency Response Law.

          5                 Today is the first hearing on these

          6  bills, and I look forward to working with the

          7  Administration and all involved parties in

          8  evaluating today's testimony and determining how we

          9  should proceed in the future.  As you all know this

         10  is an extremely sensitive area in these times when

         11  we do not know where threats come to our City, we

         12  should certainly try to do everything to eliminate

         13  threats which exist and avoid negligence, let alone

         14  give an opportunity for people who would do us

         15  damage to use these materials.

         16                 And with me today is our members of

         17  the Committee, Mr. Leffler is here or was here, oh,

         18  there he is, hi, Mr. Leffler. Mr. Leffler is here

         19  from Queens; Mr. Robles is from Brooklyn, our WHIP,

         20  and Mr. Carrion just walked in from the Bronx, and

         21  Mr. Fiala from Staten Island.  And from time to time

         22  we will be joined by other members of the Committee.

         23                 And we really appreciate your being

         24  here and please, we understand, I spoke to the

         25  Commissioner and I told him what we're doing today
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          2  and he said that I should convey his good wishes on

          3  what we are doing.  And as we say we would want to

          4  work, we know this is the first time on, that made

          5  some, we have looked at the legislation and if they

          6  do need some work we want to make sure that we have

          7  an to work with you.  And you are our first witness,

          8  will you identify yourself and the agency?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Yes,

         10  good morning, Mr. Chairman Michels and members of

         11  the Committee.  I am Bob Avaltroni, Deputy

         12  Commissioner for Environmental Compliance, the New

         13  York City Department of Environmental Protection.

         14                 On behalf of Commissioner Miele, I

         15  want to thank you for this opportunity to testify on

         16  two proposed local laws, Intro. 692 and Intro. 193.

         17  Although these two bills are different in some

         18  respects, they both address issues associated with

         19  the presence in New York City of substances that can

         20  compose a threat to workers, citizens and emergency

         21  personnel if they are not handled safely.

         22                 I will address Intro. 692 first.  As

         23  we would recall, as you suggested, the tragic death

         24  of Sanitation worker Michael Hanly was a very vivid

         25  and acute reminder of the danger created by persons
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          2  who handles hazardous substances in a flagrantly

          3  irresponsible manner.  Intro. 692, introduced by

          4  Chairman Michels and others, at the request of the

          5  Mayor, would increase civil penalties and create

          6  criminal penalties for the violations of the New

          7  York City Hazardous Substances Emergency Response

          8  Law, a local law usually referred to as the "Spill

          9  Bill."  In addition to penalty changes designed to

         10  create a more powerful incentive for compliance, the

         11  legislation would add the word "abandonment" to the

         12  provision of the Spill Bill that defines the release

         13  of a hazardous substance.  The reason for the

         14  proposed change in the statutory definition of

         15  release is as follows:

         16                 In the context of the Spill Bill, as

         17  currently written, the word release means spilling,

         18  leaking, pumping, pouring, emitting, emptying

         19  discharging, injecting, escaping, leaching, dumping,

         20  or disposing into the environment.  Although we have

         21  understood this language to allow a violation to be

         22  issued against a person who leaves hazardous

         23  substances behind when they vacate a premise, this

         24  understanding has been challenged.  An argument has

         25  been made by recipients of Spill Bill violations

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            8

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  that abandonment of intact containers of hazardous

          3  substances is not a release as defined in the Spill

          4  Bill.  To resolve this misconception, Section One of

          5  Intro. 692 would clarify the definition of release

          6  to include the abandonment of a container containing

          7  hazardous substances.

          8                 The abandonment of hazardous

          9  substances has been identified by DEP's hazardous

         10  materials staff as a significant problem and a

         11  threat to the safety of our workers and our

         12  citizens. We are all concerned that irresponsible

         13  parties do leave containers containing hazardous

         14  substances on public property with no intent to

         15  retrieve the containers.  In response to this, we

         16  are proposing this necessary amendment to the Spill

         17  Bill to clarify that abandoning hazardous substances

         18  without notification to DEP even when the substances

         19  are in sealed containers, constitutes a violation of

         20  local law.

         21                 Aside from the change in definitions,

         22  the other changes to the Spill Bill proposed in

         23  Intro. 692 concern increasing civil penalties and

         24  creating criminal penalties.

         25                 The Spill Bill presently authorizes
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          2  civil penalties of up to $10,000 for failure to

          3  notify DEP of a release of a hazardous substance in

          4  excess soft the threshold established in regulation

          5  for that particular substance.  The Spill Bill also

          6  presently authorizes civil penalties of up to $5,000

          7  per day for violation of an Order issued by the

          8  Commissioner directing a responsible party to clean

          9  up a spill.  These penalty amounts have been in

         10  effect since the enactment of the Spill Bill in

         11  1987.  It is our experience that, in some cases, the

         12  current civil penalty maximum levels are

         13  insufficient to determined the larger or more

         14  irresponsible violators.  Therefore, Intro. 692

         15  proposes to raise the maximum penalty for failure to

         16  notify to $25,000; and, to raise the maximum penalty

         17  for failure to comply with a clean- up order to

         18  $10,000 per day.  By doing so, it sends a clear,

         19  concise message that any party willing in jeopardize

         20  the health and safety of our citizens will face

         21  serious monetary and criminal consequences.  The

         22  imposition of criminal penalties is significant to

         23  this revision to Intro. 692.

         24                 Intro. 692, by creating criminally

         25  penalties of up to $25,000 and a year of
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          2  imprisonment no longer allows violators to hide

          3  behind a claim of no assets available to satisfy

          4  issued fines. The threat of imprisonment,

          5  particularly, will prove to be a powerful tool in

          6  encouraging commercial users of hazardous substances

          7  to act responsibly or face the consequences.

          8                 Before I comment on the other bill on

          9  today's agenda, Intro. 193, sponsored by Council

         10  Member McCaffrey, we thank the Members of this

         11  Committee and particularly you, Chairman Michels,

         12  for including Intro. 692 on today's agenda.  We are

         13  hopeful that the Committee will favorably consider

         14  that bill and we look forward to working with you to

         15  make it a very needed reality.

         16                 Intro. 193, first proposed in 1991,

         17  also amends the Spill Bill, by adding a new section

         18  that would require DEP to create a data base system

         19  which would contain information relating to the

         20  presence or release of hazardous substances by an

         21  agency or responsible person as defined in Section

         22  24- 603.  The proposed system would have access to

         23  information stored on the databases of other

         24  agencies involved in emergency response.  The bill

         25  specifies that the database would be available to
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          2  Council Members, Council staff and the public.

          3                 With a couple of notable differences,

          4  the database proposed by Intro. 193 is similar to a

          5  system that DEP is currently enhancing to allow

          6  other City agencies online access to the hazardous

          7  materials information received from business and

          8  city agencies.  One difference is that our database

          9  will not be made available to the public, since it

         10  contains material that businesses consider

         11  confidential and material that emergency response

         12  agencies may consider inappropriate for public

         13  distribution.

         14                 A second difference is that we are

         15  enhancing a system database on hazardous materials

         16  making it available to other agencies, not to make

         17  their databases more accessible to ours.  In

         18  essence, DEP would be the central repository for

         19  hazardous materials information.  Our database is

         20  constructed as a hazardous materials reference tool

         21  that may be searched or queried by appropriate City

         22  personnel at other agencies.  That is slightly

         23  different than the original concept described in

         24  Intro. 193. Intro. 193 appears to envision a

         25  database that actively initiates inquiries into, or
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          2  collects information from, the Fire Department, the

          3  Police Department, and other agencies with emergency

          4  response responsibilities.  When our system is fully

          5  enhanced, it will already have collected an

          6  organized information on hazardous materials

          7  submitted other us from a variety of sources.  As

          8  part of our system, we are moving forward with a

          9  pilot program to distribute hand held computers that

         10  would allow emergency responders to access our

         11  database on scene to determine what type of

         12  hazardous materials they may be confronting.

         13                 As the Committee may know, our

         14  database consists, in large part, of information

         15  submitted to us pursuant to the New York City Right-

         16  to- Know Law, and its accompanying regulations.  The

         17  Right- to- Know regulations are designed to protect

         18  the public from the dangers associated with

         19  hazardous substances, extremely hazardous

         20  substances, and regulated toxic substances.  The

         21  purpose is achieved by requiring that the hazardous

         22  substances be reported to us and be required that

         23  Risk Management Plans be filed with us when

         24  Extremely Hazardous Substances or regulated toxins

         25  at or above the federal threshold planning
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          2  quantities are present at a facility.  The Right-

          3  to- Know Law has a very low reporting thresholds for

          4  many substances, even small quantities may need to

          5  be reported.  In addition, Right- to- Know has

          6  reporting requirements that include reporting spills

          7  at the facility, designating a facility emergency

          8  coordinator and labeling hazardous materials

          9  containers properly.  As it is currently configured,

         10  we could not make its database, or even the proposed

         11  database in Intro. 193, fully accessible to the

         12  public due to the confidential status of some

         13  information that is reported to us at the time of

         14  filing.             There is a provision in the New

         15  York City Right- to Know Law which allows for

         16  businesses, under certain conditions, to claim trade

         17  secret status for some chemical- specific

         18  information that may be of interest to their

         19  competitors.  When trade secret status has been

         20  granted, certain information -- although fully

         21  reported to us -- may not be disclosed to the

         22  public.  Apart from specific chemical information

         23  unavailable to the public because the information

         24  has been designated a trade secret, we have some

         25  reservations about full public access to the
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          2  hazardous substance information submitted and

          3  maintained.  Businesses provide us with detailed

          4  risk management plans outlining where in their

          5  facility materials are stored, in what quantities,

          6  access points and a variety of other information.

          7  Providing greater public access to this information

          8  for public distribution could pose a significant

          9  security risk to the general public as well as a

         10  financial risk to the business community complying

         11  with the law.

         12                 We believe that this combination of

         13  the Spill Bill and the current Right- to- Know Law

         14  provisions already in place, and the enhanced system

         15  we will be making available to other emergency

         16  response agencies is consistent, and in many ways

         17  more substantial than the system proposed in Intro.

         18  193.

         19                 In conclusion, Intro. 692 would

         20  enable us to further toughen its approach against

         21  those who dumping hazardous wastes and those persons

         22  who have reason to know of such dumping, but fail to

         23  take appropriate action.

         24                 The threat of civil penalties is not

         25  always enough of a deterrent, as you suggested
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          2  before.  By imposing criminal penalties the bill

          3  will strengthen our existing measures and maximize

          4  protection of the public we serve.

          5                 I thank you for this opportunity to

          6  speak.  I and members of my staff would be happy to

          7  answer any questions you might have.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Thank you very

          9  much, Mr. Avaltroni, we appreciate your statement

         10  and very constructive, and it is something that I

         11  have been thinking about a lot.

         12                 We are joined also by Chairman of the

         13  Housing and Buildings Committee, Archie Spigner.

         14                 And let me ask you some questions

         15  about your statement before I get into some of my

         16  own here.  I take it you're not prepared at this

         17  time to support the 193, but you're not foreclosing

         18  the possibility of working together and conforming

         19  it to some of the practices that already exists, and

         20  except of course, something that occurred to me at

         21  the same time that occurred in your statement when I

         22  was going over the legislation, about the public's

         23  Right- to- Know on this, but it could be worked out

         24  in a situation where, if there is a need to know,

         25  they can apply to your agency and you could make a
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          2  determination as to whether or not they have a

          3  Right- to- Know, as long as it is on a reasonable

          4  basis?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Yes,

          6  Mr. Chairman, I think, certainly we do not oppose

          7  the concept of Intro. 193.  I think the intent was

          8  great, I think it may move further, and in fact, it

          9  has been a part, a responsibility that this

         10  Committee has shared with the Administration.  We

         11  have a system in place that we would love to show to

         12  you, we would love to demonstrate, and we would love

         13  to enhance with your assistance, as well.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But my purpose

         15  in putting forth 193 is because I'm very concerned

         16  when emergency response people, fire, and other

         17  people who have to go into a building when they do

         18  not know what is in that building in response to an

         19  emergency situation, such as a fire, or any other

         20  type of emergency, that there not be endangered out

         21  of the unknown.  And that therefore, the idea of a

         22  hand held computer, as you suggested in your

         23  statement, that as they're on their way to a fire,

         24  if they could just put in the address and if there

         25  has been proper reporting of that particular address
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          2  as to what hazardous materials are there, they will

          3  know what they're getting into and they may have to

          4  be careful, maybe use different materials to fight

          5  the fire or to operate within that building.

          6                 And also as you know, with the Fire

          7  Department if they have to go in and they can wear

          8  certain materials and also be subject to coming and

          9  having going in on a shower, which we have trucks

         10  now with showers in them, so that when they come out

         11  they will have showers and get all of the materials

         12  off of them, if the material has leaked or if they

         13  have been exposed to materials.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Yes,

         15  we have that information at present, that is

         16  certainly our intent, as I suggested in my

         17  testimony, to have that information available in the

         18  form of a laptop and from computerized perspective.

         19  We also have that information right now with respect

         20  to when any agency that is responding to an incident

         21  can obtain the information, as you suggested, which

         22  is very necessary to know what they are going into.

         23  And with regard to the DCOM process, yes, we have

         24  taken steps to ensure that appropriate parties with

         25  DCOM have access.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            18

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And I know that

          3  there are federal and the state laws listing the

          4  types of hazardous materials, there is a threshold

          5  for the type of materials that you can store and not

          6  have to report, low- threshold, but it is important.

          7    When I realized that the, and we just passed the

          8  anniversary of the World Trade Center bombing, that

          9  was done with fertilizer, that was what they were

         10  using.  And I don't know if fertilizer, itself, is

         11  that listed anywhere as a possible hazardous

         12  material?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  I

         14  will tell you what, I would let Kim Hanna, who is

         15  our Deputy Director of the Division of Emergency

         16  Response and Technical Assessment, who is on my

         17  right, speak more to that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Good, thank you

         19  very much. Welcome, I'm glad to hear from you.

         20                 MS. HANNA:  Excuse me for being late.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Move by the

         22  mic.

         23                 MS. HANNA:  I did not know there was

         24  another hearing, I was in the other room.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Okay, well
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          2  you're here now.

          3                 MS. HANNA:  Yes, okay.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  If you would

          5  identify yourself?

          6                 MS. HANNA:  My name is Kim Hanna.  I

          7  work for Commissioner Avaltroni under the Bureau of

          8  Emergency Environmental Compliance.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Move the mic a

         10  little closer, because we can hardly hear.  And

         11  speak up a little louder.

         12                 MS. HANNA:  Yes, Sir.  And I have

         13  been working for the Hazmat Emergency Response Unit

         14  for 10 years.

         15                 And your question was, I believe,

         16  that you would like to - -

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  What is, give

         18  us your qualifications?

         19                 MS. HANNA:  I'm an Engineering

         20  Chemist, I have a Bachelor of Science from SUNY at

         21  Stony Brook.  I'm a Certified Hazardous Materials

         22  Manager, which is a National certification that is

         23  given to individuals that hold Bachelor's Degrees in

         24  the physical sciences who can demonstrate through an

         25  exam that they are familiar with federal, state, and
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          2  local regulations pertaining to the handling of

          3  hazardous materials to environmental regulation, and

          4  that they actually conduct their job, is actually,

          5  pertains to- -

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  The reason that

          7  I'm asking you for you that, - -

          8                 MS. HANNA:  Yes, Sir.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: - -  not that I

         10  have any question of your credentials, but I think

         11  if somebody has worked so hard and gotten all of

         12  these degrees and studied, should have an

         13  opportunity once in a while to say what their

         14  background is.  In a sense, not brag, but at least

         15  give your qualifications, people listening should

         16  not just think that you're just an ordinary civil

         17  service worker, which is wonderful to be a civil

         18  service worker, but that you have super

         19  qualifications and I think people should know about

         20  it.

         21                 MS. HANNA: Well, thank you, Sir.  I

         22  don't have that opportunity to discuss that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Now would you

         24  answer the question, the question I was asking, is,

         25  we know that there are listings, various listings of
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          2  hazardous materials on a federal level and on a

          3  state level, and probably even on the city level,

          4  and sometimes they're different and sometimes, most

          5  of the time they're the same, I guess.  And I just

          6  was questioning whether or not, because we knew, we

          7  just passed the anniversary of the bombing of the

          8  World Trade Center, and it came to my attention that

          9  actually was used, they were using fertilizer as one

         10  of the components of the bomb that went off there.

         11  Is fertilizer listed as a hazardous material

         12  anywhere?

         13                 MS. HANNA:  Yes, monium (phonetic)

         14  nitrate is a listed substance on the Spill Bill,

         15  which is, the Spill Bill is what we refer to as the

         16  New York City Hazardous Materials Emergency Response

         17  Law.  Yes, that is a listed substance in the Spill

         18  Bill.

         19                 The Spill Bill also, the list, the

         20  Spill Bill, the regulations, itself, provides a list

         21  of materials that are specifically regulated.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  The Spill Bill

         23  being the law that is already existing - -

         24                 MS. HANNA:  Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: - -  and which
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          2  we are making reference to just for the purpose of

          3  the knowledge of the public.

          4                 MS. HANNA:  Yes, Sir, that is

          5  correct.

          6                 In addition to the specific chemicals

          7  that are on the list of regulated substances, there

          8  are also general categories that do exist in the

          9  list.  For example, if a substance is flammable or

         10  reactive or corrosive, if a specific chemical,

         11  itself, is not actually on the list, it may, indeed,

         12  though fall under one of those general

         13  characterizations.  Those characterizations are also

         14  derived from the EPA Regulations.  They're

         15  corrosive, they're flammable, they're reactive, and

         16  they're TCLP toxic.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  So the

         18  amendment we're doing here with respect to 692,

         19  which talks about in adding to that the actual

         20  abandonment.  In other words, these are some of the

         21  things, even though a material may be in a container

         22  not leaking in any respect, it still can be

         23  dangerous just by the fact of standing, because

         24  certain chemicals given it over a time can

         25  deteriorate in themselves and cause a problem.  Is

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            23

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  that true?

          3                 MS. HANNA:  Absolutely correct, and

          4  we run into those situations many times.  And it is

          5  surprising how many abandoned facilities are left in

          6  the City of New York.  The owners typically do not

          7  live in New York City of these large buildings that

          8  we end up running into, they leave vats, or drums,

          9  or containers full of all kinds of hazardous

         10  materials, all kinds of toxins.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  We all know of

         12  the consequences by spontaneous combustion.

         13                 MS. HANNA:  Yes, monium nitrate may

         14  also degrade given the correct environmental

         15  conditions.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  That is the

         17  word I wanted to hear, so that is why we have to

         18  have this abandonment, even though it may be in the

         19  container and it may appear to be safe and no

         20  leakage, in itself can denigrate and can become

         21  dangerous.

         22                 MS. HANNA:  Absolutely, whether it is

         23  in a container abandoned, left on the street, or

         24  whether it is inside an abandoned building, where

         25  you find the homeless who also go in from the
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          2  streets for shelter, we, I mean we found them making

          3  their homes in abandoned buildings with 50,000

          4  gallons of toxic and corrosive materials in there,

          5  and they would take file cabinets and open the

          6  bottom draw and they would make a little bar- b- que

          7  out of it, and they would do the cooking, and right

          8  next to them would be these materials that had been

          9  left there for years, where the owners have just

         10  walked away.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I guess we're

         12  lucky we have not had many more explosions in these

         13  situations.

         14                 MS. HANNA:  We're lucky, we find out

         15  about a lot of these buildings and abandoned

         16  containers on the street throughout the City

         17  resources that do regular inspections of the

         18  buildings. And then they determine that they have

         19  been abandoned and closed down.  We get citizen

         20  calls that tell us that there is a drum left on the

         21  street, and these materials could be very dangerous.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Okay,

         23  let me just say, also, - -

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Yes.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: - -
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          2  Mr. Chairman, that I think when speak to the Right-

          3  to- Know Program, I have spoken many times, again,

          4  through our collective efforts the number of Right-

          5  to- Know filings is dramatically increased over the

          6  years.  In fact, I say that last year we did more

          7  filings in one calendar year than we did the prior

          8  nine years, prior to our coming to you in 1996 for

          9  assistance.  So I think the fact that we are out

         10  there in a proactive manner is certainly testimony

         11  to us working together.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  That was what I

         13  was going to ask you about, because there are two

         14  ways, you have knowledge of it, when people file

         15  according to the Right- to- Know Law.  And when you

         16  have your inspectors out there going around and

         17  finding various, and there are other agencies that

         18  do inspection, I don't know if they report to you.

         19  What I was going to ask you is, whether or not you

         20  are coordinated with agencies like the Fire

         21  Department, we do know does inspections, maybe not

         22  inspecting for hazardous materials, but electrical

         23  today, but if they should come across something that

         24  is hazardous would they report it to you?  Or HPD

         25  when they do an inspection of some violation, or the
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          2  Department of Buildings, are they on notice to

          3  report to you of any hazardous materials so that you

          4  would, or potential hazardous materials, so that you

          5  would send out some inspectors to make sure to know

          6  what actually they come across?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Yes,

          8  they are, and in fact we promote that not only to

          9  our sister agencies, but obviously to the public at

         10  large.  We have been fortunate that by having

         11  seminars and conferences in various areas, a sense

         12  of awareness has created, again, a more proactive

         13  effort from not only our sister agencies, but

         14  citizens of the City.  And, in fact, we have gone as

         15  far as going into various industries to try to speak

         16  to those industries in terms of the necessity of

         17  filing appropriately with us and the benefits that

         18  they will derive long term, rather than creating

         19  problems for the City.  And it has been well met,

         20  but naturally as we suggested before - -

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  When you talk

         22  about industries, of course, everybody including the

         23  President last night, if you listened to his speech,

         24  talked about Brown Fields. I think one of the best

         25  things we could do to get at Brown Fields to avoid
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          2  creating them.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  That

          4  is correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  These hazardous

          6  materials will, if leakage, and even just by their

          7  abandonment, can create hazardous, can create Brown

          8  Fields.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  That

         10  is correct.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  You know the

         12  millions of dollars are going to be spent on doing

         13  away with these Brown Fields and recovering

         14  potential sites for new industry or housing.  Or we

         15  have a situation in my district where they were

         16  going to put, actually were ready to put children in

         17  a school and they found out that there were gases in

         18  the ground, because it was a real Brown Field

         19  situation.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  I

         21  agree, and that goes back to our theory, and I think

         22  your theory in having a proactive effort always will

         23  help that.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  In regard to

         25  the proactiveness, I have never seen any public
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          2  announcement.  I did not want to panic people, but,

          3  and then just have people calling up in helter

          4  skelter, but it should be something, there should

          5  be, I don't know if you done any public

          6  announcements as to if you see something that looks

          7  dangerous to you report it to us or something like

          8  that,  or how you encourage it without getting into

          9  a panic situation?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Well

         11  I think we have had an outreach program, as you

         12  suggested that is responsible and it has been more

         13  indicative in the area, again, of industry.  We, for

         14  instance, will have a separate group that is apart

         15  from our Emergency Response Area called our, EEDAU,

         16  that is the Economic Environmental Development

         17  Assistance Unit, go out to various groups, and in

         18  fact, have our experts speak to these people about

         19  hazardous materials.  We have been well received in

         20  industry, you know, people are often, you know we

         21  often try to identify, as we have suggested here,

         22  where the violators misuse their, the trust and

         23  create situations that are intolerable.  But there

         24  are many people out there, as you know, Mr. Chairman

         25  and members of this Committee, that are responsible
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          2  citizens, and just did not have the knowledge in the

          3  past.  We're attempting to educate, and we're

          4  finding people that have - -

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  In that regard

          6  how many Right to- Know inspectors do you have on

          7  your staff?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  We

          9  have 14 and I think - -

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Covering the

         11  entire City?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  This

         13  is the entire City, but this is up, as you know, we

         14  did that several years ago when we centralized and

         15  consolidated our Emergency Response Group with our

         16  Right- to- Know people.  So when we are not

         17  responding to incidents, our individuals go out into

         18  the field and handle Right to- Know.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Just refresh my

         20  recollection, I may be corrected, I'm sure if my

         21  recollection is incorrect, Mr. Leffler will refresh

         22  my recollection.  It seems to us that we had a

         23  tussle with your agency, not necessarily with you or

         24  the current Commissioner, as to the fact that we had

         25  put certain monies in with the idea of increasing
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          2  the staff for the Right- to- Know, and that money

          3  for some reason was never spent.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  That

          5  is correct, and since 1996, since Commissioner Miele

          6  came to DEP - -

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Well

          8  institutional memory.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: - -

         10  and I came to DEP, you're very correct, there has

         11  been a concerted effort to change that.  And I

         12  think, again, working with this Committee has been

         13  very rewarding for us, and of course, naturally the

         14  support that we had from the Mayor to push us out

         15  there and do the things were needed in the past.  I

         16  agree with you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Now these 14

         18  inspectors these are devoted to the Right- to- Know

         19  Law.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: They

         21  are well rounded in the Right- to- Know Law as well

         22  as a number of those people are also in the area of

         23  Emergency Response, so there is a great balance.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  My point being

         25  that you have other inspectors, many other
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          2  inspectors, I do not know what your entire

          3  spectorial staff consists of, how many other

          4  inspectors do you have other than the 14 in the

          5  agency?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Well

          7  we have Air and Noise inspectors, which are not

          8  relevant to this area.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But how many do

         10  you have?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  We

         12  have approximately 40.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  About 40 and

         14  that is the total inspectorial staff that you have?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  That

         16  is correct.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And one of the

         18  answers that was given to us by one of the

         19  Commissioners, I forget which ones, that a lot of

         20  these inspectors will be cross- trained.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  That

         22  is correct.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  So all these

         24  Air and Noise inspectors are also cross- trained on

         25  Right- to- Know?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  No,

          3  they do Air and Noise solely.  The Right- to- Know

          4  folks are combined, as I said, in Division of

          5  Emergency Response and Technical Assessment, which

          6  Kim Hanna is part of.  And these people - -

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Well not so

          8  much - -

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:

         10  Originally, I think, when I came to this table

         11  originally in 1996 we had 3 people dedicated to

         12  Right- to- Know by consolidating, again, this

         13  Division of Emergency Response and Technical

         14  Assessment with the Right- to Know Group, putting

         15  them together.  It enhanced our abilities to go out

         16  and make inspections.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  The point I'm

         18  making is that you have inspectors that do various

         19  things that go various places who are not

         20  necessarily Right- to- Know.  But they should have,

         21  at least, a modicum of knowledge to know to call in

         22  the Right- to- Know.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Oh,

         24  that goes without saying, yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  They may not be

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            33

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  cross- trained to be able do it, but they are

          3  trained to that extent?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Yes,

          5  they are.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Now, what is

          7  the concept, how do they determine where they go to

          8  inspect, are they doing periodic inspections all

          9  over the City, how do you utilize the services of

         10  these Right- to- Know inspectors?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  I'm

         12  going to defer it to Kim Hanna, again.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Thank you.  I'm

         14  very appreciative that you're here.

         15                 MS. HANNA:  The Right- to- Know

         16  inspectors are given a weekly inspection schedule.

         17  Each inspector is assigned a number of facilities

         18  each day, and that is a very proactive way that we

         19  have learned to manage the program.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  How do you

         21  determine, what is your methodology of assigning?

         22                 MS. HANNA:  Currently what is in the

         23  Right- to- Know database is approximately 5,000

         24  facilities.  We try to ensure that every facility in

         25  the database is inspected on a yearly basis, at
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          2  least, once.

          3                 Commissioner Avaltroni was also

          4  referring to community outreach, which we have been

          5  doing, the Bureau has been conducting.  As a result

          6  of that we have been bringing more people into

          7  compliance as well.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: These are the

          9  people who reported to you as they're required to do

         10  under the law?

         11                 MS. HANNA:  Yes, the 5,000 that we -

         12   -

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  You check to

         14  see whether or not the reports are accurate, and - -

         15                 MS. HANNA:  Oh, that is correct.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  - -  and their

         17  risk management plan is accurate?

         18                 MS. HANNA: That is correct, because

         19  many facilities, of course, will not file, a lot of

         20  people will slip through.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  That are the

         22  ones I want, you know, the ones that have already

         23  complied, the odds are that they're are certain

         24  modicum that are compliant.  What about the areas

         25  that you know that there may very well be hazardous
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          2  materials where they have not complied, they have

          3  not reported?

          4                 MS. HANNA:  A Right- to- Know

          5  inspector will go out the facilities that we know

          6  exist in our system.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Right.

          8                 MS. HANNA:  The Emergency Response

          9  Group encounter, because they go on emergencies and

         10  complaints and things of that sort, they end up

         11  going to facilities that may not be in the system

         12  because they respond to emergencies, complaints.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Fine, but that

         14  is on the emergency basis.

         15                 MS. HANNA:  On emergency - -

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Well you know

         17  where certain industries are, you know what certain

         18  industries do, you probably have a way of knowing

         19  you have certain industries out there, and then if

         20  you look and you check say a plating type of

         21  industry that do those platings, silver plating or

         22  any type of plating which we have in the City, and

         23  if you noticed where they are and you know that they

         24  have not complied, do you cross check to see whether

         25  or not there is compliance with the industry that
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          2  you know exists?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  We

          4  have - -

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  You can even

          6  look in the Yellow Pages and find them.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Yes,

          8  that is exactly the point we're going to make, and I

          9  think we have discussed this in the past.  Since

         10  1996 we have used every trade publication, every

         11  source available to us, including the Yellow Pages

         12  to identify possible parties that would, in fact,

         13  fall into having to file with us.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  So do you have

         15  system of checking on these, even though they may

         16  not be a necessity of emergency response, but you

         17  know that this particular industry has not complied

         18  and you send somebody out?

         19                 The whole point I'm making, not so

         20  much as a gotcha situation, but one of the ways that

         21  you get compliance is when a person who is out of

         22  compliance knows that there is a certain amount of

         23  certainty that he is going to be discovered.

         24                 MS. HANNA:  That is correct.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And that he is
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          2  going to fined or given an opportunity to do things.

          3                 MS. HANNA: That is correct.  And we

          4  are bringing more and more facilities into

          5  compliance.  We do, the Commissioner had indicated

          6  that we do searches through the Yellow Pages, we

          7  have CD software, which we can search specific

          8  industries by SIC Code, then we narrow it down to

          9  where they exit within the five boroughs.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I understand

         11  and I appreciate it.  I'm sorry to cut you.

         12                 MS. HANNA:  That is all right.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Now we're

         14  increasing the penalties, now tell us what has been

         15  your experience as far as how many penalties, how

         16  many penalties have you given out, have you been

         17  able to enforce these penalties, have you collected

         18  money, how much have you collected?

         19                 MS. HANNA:  There is a fine schedule

         20  for the Right to- Know penalties.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I know that,

         22  we're amending that.

         23                 MS. HANNA:  Okay, right.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  We're

         25  increasing it, but on the law that exists now have
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          2  we really been enforcing it to the extent that we

          3  should?  I'm not saying we haven't, I'm just asking

          4  the question.

          5                 MS. HANNA:  Absolutely, absolutely.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And how much

          7  money has actually been fined, and how much money

          8  have we actually collected?

          9                 MS. HANNA:  My understanding is that

         10  the program will generate about a million dollar

         11  revenue per year.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  It goes to the

         13  General Fund.

         14                 MS. HANNA:  Yes.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Yes,

         16  and most of the information, Mr. Chairman, that

         17  you're referring to is in the Right- to- Know Annual

         18  Report.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Okay, so it's a

         20  million dollars, and how many, what percentage of

         21  the people that you actually, you go out and look

         22  into you find are not in compliance?

         23                 MS. HANNA:  I'm afraid I cannot

         24  answer that question with any accuracy at the

         25  moment.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  You can get me

          3  the information.  We're going to have another

          4  hearing.  Now this is the type of thing I want to

          5  hear, I want to get to us when we finally look at

          6  the legislation to pass.  I want to know that what

          7  we have is effective and why we're being, why we

          8  have to increase to be more effective?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  We

         10  would be happy to exchange that information and we

         11  would be happy to work with you, also in that

         12  regard.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Now considering

         14  the danger, and then I'm going to let some other

         15  questions to be asked, considering the danger you

         16  think the criminal sanctions just being merely a

         17  misdemeanor, which you know will be reduced by a

         18  court to a lower to just merely a fine probably, is

         19  enough of a sanction to get compliance?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  I

         21  think the criminal- -

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Should we seek

         23  legislation in Albany - -

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  The

         25  criminal penalties are the most significant, most
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          2  relevant aspect of this bill.  As I suggested it,

          3  you know, there are many ways to avoid making

          4  payments, one can declare bankruptcy, one could

          5  suggest they do not have tangible assets, but in

          6  fact if you catch an individual that does the type

          7  of things that you have mentioned before that are

          8  serious and impair the health and well being of our

          9  citizens, I think when you talk about criminal

         10  penalties, that is the heavy hammer that we need.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But as I said

         12  before, what we are providing for is misdemeanor.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  It's

         14  one year imprisonment, and as I said, we would be

         15  willing to support, if you're suggesting to take

         16  this higher, we would certainly be willing to

         17  support it.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  We have no

         19  jurisdiction over it other than a misdemeanor.  I

         20  don't think we can give any, we can do any more.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Okay,

         22  if you could find a way to increase - -

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  It would have

         24  to be done by Albany.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:
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          2  Right, we would certainly be right there with you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But I think

          4  these sufficient dangerous, the sufficient threat

          5  that perhaps we should think about it.  We would do

          6  what we have to do, and a fully approve of making it

          7  a misdemeanor, but my experience as a lawyer is that

          8  just charged with a misdemeanor and you go before a

          9  judge in order to avoid a trial they would always,

         10  nobody goes to jail on a misdemeanor when he has

         11  originally been charged.  The only time they go to

         12  jail on a misdemeanor is when it was reduced from a

         13  felony.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Well

         15  this Administration certainly is willing to work, go

         16  arm and arm with you and seek whatever legislation

         17  is needed to make sure that the criminal charges

         18  imposed are significant.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I believe that

         20  it is sufficiently dangerous situations that we

         21  really have to come down very hard to make sure that

         22  people comply, and if people start going to jail for

         23  this, there will be much more compliance.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  We

         25  concur with you, Mr. Chairman.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Mr. Leffler.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER:  Yes, thank

          4  you.  Good morning.  One of the points in the

          5  Council that has been made frequently is

          6  institutional memory.  I was the prime sponsor of

          7  these laws and created them back in the 1980's.

          8  These were painstaking items that took a long period

          9  of time to evolve.  Now first the one with respect

         10  to 692, you want to add in the definition of

         11  release, because you say sometimes the argument is

         12  made that the definition isn't broad enough.  We try

         13  to make the very broadest possible definition of

         14  release.

         15                 When you say the argument is made,

         16  has the argument prevailed?  I'm not against

         17  changing the language, in fact, I'm, you know, in a

         18  sense my feeling is, sure we should change the

         19  language to achieve the original intent, which was

         20  to get, but it seems to me the language is already

         21  extremely broad.  It includes any release into the

         22  environment, any emitting discharging or disposing

         23  into the environment.  It seems to me that

         24  abandonment would be subsumed within those terms,

         25  but, you know, if you want, I'm sort of skeptical
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          2  that any court would have held that somebody who

          3  simply abandons containers as hazardous substances

          4  is not subsumed within the original Spill Bill.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  First

          6  of all, Councilman Leffler I commend you.  Again, it

          7  was a long tedious process, obviously getting the

          8  Right- to- Know Law invoked.  I think, as you

          9  suggested, we made major in- roads.  I think what

         10  you're suggesting has a degree of reasonable

         11  rationale.  However, when someone comes before a

         12  judge in the hearing room, it becomes an arbitrary

         13  decision that is made.  What we would like to do is

         14   -             COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER:   It's not an

         15  arbitrary decision, he is supposed to implement the

         16  intent of the law.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Yes,

         18  but what I would like - -

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER:  And the

         20  intent of the law- -

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: - -

         22  do, and I think what you would like to do as well,

         23  going back in history, is you would like to make it

         24  a more clear, concise definition, where if a party

         25  who is looking at this, a judge is looking at this,
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          2  it's a clear, clear cut dry matter.  The area of

          3  interpretation is narrowed, and the decision should

          4  be to find that party guilty, if in fact that party

          5  is guilty.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER:  The next

          7  time I would also appreciate seeing the whole Spill

          8  Law, just in terms of the craftsmanship of the

          9  definition.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Didn't you

         11  write it?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER:  Yes, I did,

         13  but I do not remember, it was back in 1987.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  We feel that we

         15  did not need to give it to you, because we figured

         16  you knew it.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER:  What?

         18  Excuse me?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  We thought you

         20  knew it.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER:  No, I do,

         22  and that is the point.  What I'm suggesting, if you

         23  notice the structure of paragraph E, it relates to

         24  any da dum, da dum, into the environment.  When you

         25  repeat the terms or the abandonment of a container
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          2  or containers containing hazardous substance or

          3  substances, I think that you don't need all of those

          4  words.  What you need - -

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Well just a

          6  repetition, just adding the word abandonment to the

          7   - -

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER:  No, it's the

          9  abandonment that pins it down.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Yes, of course.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER:  And I don't

         12  know - -

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  You left that

         14  out of your bill originally when you wrote it.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER:  We did not -

         16   -

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  The word

         18  abandonment.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER:  We did not

         20  leave it out.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  You had

         22  abandonment in the bill?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER:  We did not

         24  put it the bill. We have words, though, which we

         25  thought were you know sufficiently broad, if you
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          2  want to add this, we can add it.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Well evidently

          4  it is, from what I understand that the

          5  interpretation has been given to it, it does not

          6  include abandonment.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER:  No, it's not

          8  the interpretation, what he said is the argument has

          9  been made.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Where?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER:  What I asked

         12  is, has the argument ever prevailed?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Yes,

         14  quite frankly, and that is what we want to do, as I

         15  suggested before.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Where did it

         17  prevail in the Control Board?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  In

         19  the hearing, absolutely, in the hearing room.

         20  Again, I want to narrow that interpretation so a

         21  judge can make a clear, concise decision based on

         22  the facts that in fact if the party is guilty of

         23  abandonment, they are found guilty and are given the

         24  maximum amount of penalty involved.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER:  No, I think
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          2  it makes sense to add it.  I think the original

          3  intent is that somebody who leaves containers,

          4  abandons containers of hazardous substances is doing

          5  those acts, that is, discharging, disposing,

          6  emitting into the environment.  It is just a time

          7  lag sort of factor.  Well I think it makes sense to

          8  put it down.

          9                 What I'm saying is before this

         10  legislation goes into effect, we're not passing it

         11  today, it is going to change, it seems to me that

         12  anybody that hears this, a hearing officer or a

         13  judge, the definition as it is, is supposed to be so

         14  broad that I would catch the conduct that it is

         15  subsumed already.  Nevertheless, for the future I

         16  think it makes sense to change it.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  And,

         18  Councilman, I can tell you that in the past

         19  decisions have been rendered by a judge in the

         20  hearing room that, in fact, have let people go.  And

         21  that interpretation, as I said, and I will reinforce

         22  the statement, I want to narrow that interpretation

         23  so it is clear and concise to any judge looking at

         24  the facts, that when a person is guilty, the are

         25  found guilty on the merits of the case.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Well that is

          3  especially with respect to criminal sanctions,

          4  because as you know the principle of the lawyers,

          5  when it is a criminal penalty, it has to be much

          6  more specificity as far as the statute is concerned.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER:  I was about

          8  to, now get into your Paragraph D that you're

          9  adding.  My recollection is the original Spill Bill

         10  requires that the person who "spills" pickup all of

         11  the costs, be responsible for all of the costs of

         12  the clean up.  In a sense therefore, it seems to me

         13  his or her responsibility or the firms

         14  responsibility is even more than a $25,000 fine.  I

         15  mean, what you really want is for the City to be

         16  made whole.  So it seems to me that adding in,

         17   "shall be punishable by a fine of $25,000,"  you

         18  know, what we really want is that the City be made

         19  whole, recover all of the costs.  Is that not right?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  That

         21  in the fact, yes, that is our objective and that has

         22  been our objective and this broadens that even

         23  further.  Because as I think you know, there is a

         24  cost recovery clause in the bill and every year the

         25  City is reimbursed for clean ups conducted by a
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          2  responsible party.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER:  Right.  Now

          4  the essence of Paragraph D is that it relates to any

          5  person who knowingly violates this system, knowingly

          6  violates.  What, right, intent, right, aren't most

          7  of your instances where you get spills, emissions

          8  and the like, matters where it is exceedingly

          9  difficult to prove intent and often it is negligence

         10  of one degree or another.  You know, what we want

         11  therefore is basically that the City, that the

         12  burden be shifted to the person who spills to make

         13  the City whole, to pay for the clean up.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  And,

         15  Councilman Leffler, that is exactly what transpires

         16  currently.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER:  Right.  Most

         18  of the situations are then, are they not instances

         19  of negligence, gross negligence, or at least

         20  situations where it is difficult to prove knowing

         21  violations.  I mean, people do not literally just

         22  try to do all of these things, I mean, most of it is

         23  accidental or negligence or gross negligence, is it

         24  not?

         25                 MS. HANNA:  When they become - -
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Yes.

          3                 MS. HANNA:  Sir, if I may?  One when

          4  a facility owner, for example, will become aware of

          5  a spill, - -

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER:  Right.

          7                 MS. HANNA: - -  or when he becomes

          8  aware of a threatened release, either a release or a

          9  threatened release, then he will meet the definition

         10  under the law, he will be obligated to comply with

         11  the law.  He really will not have any excuse not to

         12  comply with the law.  If a facility has a spill,

         13  they are aware of it.  If there is a threat of a

         14  release of a spill, because the way that they're

         15  conducting their operation is so irresponsible, then

         16  we can also bind them to the requirements of the law

         17  in ECB.  And it is just a matter of proving, and

         18  once we are in the ECB Court using our attorneys and

         19  the respondent will use his attorneys and they will

         20  argue and discuss, and we will prove to them that

         21  this facility should have been aware of a threatened

         22  release that may have occurred in their facility or

         23  of an actual release that may have occurred.

         24                 So the facility owner has to be aware

         25  of it.  If they do not know of it, if there is a
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          2  spill that occurs in the middle of the night, twelve

          3  midnight and the Fire Department responds, the Fire

          4  Department, the first thing they're going to do is

          5  they're going to phone the owner, we're going to

          6  contact the owner of the facility.  At that moment,

          7  the owner has become aware of a release, from that

          8  moment the owner is responsible for fulfilling the

          9  obligations of the Spill Bill.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER:  I think that

         11  is good.

         12                 MS. HANNA:  Oh, it's excellent,

         13  absolutely excellent.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER:  How many

         15  recoveries did the City have, say in the most recent

         16  year, I do not know if it is 2000, but 1999, how

         17  many recoveries pursuant to the Spill Bill did the

         18  City make or approximately?

         19                 MS. HANNA:  Are you referring to cost

         20  recovery from clean ups?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER:  The cost

         22  recovery, right.

         23                 MS. HANNA:  Actually, pretty much we

         24  have been very successful in the Hazmat Emergency

         25  Response Unit, they're the unit that enforces the
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          2  Spill Bill.  They have pretty much been successful

          3  at getting everybody to clean up there spills.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER:  They clean

          5  up themselves?

          6                 MS. HANNA:  Yes, we order, through

          7  the Spill Bill we're able to issue a Commissioner's

          8  Order, which basically is written by the Hazardous

          9  Materials Specialists that enforce the Spill Bill,

         10  and on that Order, because of the wonderful way the

         11  Spill Bill is written, it gives those people a lot

         12  of latitude to use their judgement on what needs to

         13  be done to do a proper clean up, to ensure

         14  compliance with all environmental regulations, with

         15  health and safety regulations that exists, and to

         16  provide for the safety of the surrounding community

         17  at the same time.  It's a very broad, as you said, a

         18  very broad definition, the Spill Bill provides for

         19  broad definition and gives us a lot of latitude to

         20  do what we have to do.  And, therefore, our clean

         21  ups are very successful.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER:  And it seems

         23  to me this is going to even enhance that.  I mean, -

         24   -

         25                 MS. HANNA:  Yes, it will.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: - -  the real

          3  consequence will be that you will have a hammer of a

          4  criminal sanction over individuals as to whom civil

          5  recovery is not that much because they do not have

          6  the wherewithal to do it.

          7                 MS. HANNA:  That is correct, it is

          8  another extra help that it's really going to give

          9  us.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I think Mr.

         11  Leffler has brought up a very good point, by the

         12  way, and that point being that when it comes to

         13  criminal sanctions that you have to prove intent and

         14  you have to prove that the person knew, but as far

         15  as civil concerns you could have either knew or had

         16  reason to know.

         17                 MS. HANNA:  Yes, that is correct.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  So I think

         19  maybe we may have to work on some language here to

         20  make sure that the criminal sanctions take.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  We

         22  would be happy to do that, and again, when Kim

         23  speaks of a Commissioner's Order issued in the

         24  field, we have even taken a more progressive

         25  attitude where years ago you would have to come back
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          2  and get a hold of the Commissioner, the authority is

          3  in the field to issue that Commissioner's Order on

          4  site, immediately, with advisement to the

          5  Commissioner at the same time.

          6                 So I think we have taken steps, bold

          7  steps, obviously, to ensure that clean ups are

          8  conducted properly, that the City is fully

          9  reimbursed, and I think what we're speaking about

         10  here is further enhancing that effort, which I think

         11  we all agree to.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Okay.  Thank

         13  you, Mr. Leffler. Mr. Robles.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER:  I'm not

         15  finished.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Do a second

         17  round, let Mr. Robles go.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER:  Stanley, you

         19  know, you went on for a half hour, some of us were

         20  here from the beginning.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Shelly, I

         22  learned how to do that from your Committees when you

         23  do it.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER:  That is not

         25  the case, I do not do it for a half hour.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Shelly,

          3  everybody who is on your Committee knows you do it,

          4  come on.  Continue, you can go on second round, but

          5  let someone else have a chance.  Mr. Robles.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES:  Thank you,

          7  Mr. Chairman. Commissioner, let me bring you back to

          8  Intro. 193, so that I can understand what was

          9  discussed between you and the Chair, and correct me

         10  if I'm wrong, and then let me get to my point.  If I

         11  understood it correctly, you're not opposed or the

         12  Administration is not opposed to the concept of the

         13  bill, but you point out certain areas where

         14  allegedly, I believe you said, the industry feels

         15  that there is confidential information that may be

         16  disposed of.  Please help some of us who are not as

         17  affluent or as astute to either the legalities or

         18  the legal jargon or what have you, what are some of

         19  those confidential information, that you're not

         20  saying it, but the industry is saying it, so that we

         21  have an idea of what they're referring to?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Okay,

         23  Councilman Robles, as I suggested before, there is a

         24  trade secret intent. Obviously, if someone is doing

         25  something and their competitors were aware of what
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          2  they do, then it could affect their business, so

          3  they are entitled to be protected from a trade

          4  secret perspective.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES:  So there are

          6  areas, and I just want to make sure that I

          7  understand what I'm hearing, that in terms of what

          8  the Chair was saying about us working together,

          9  clearly again, the intent is one that you are not

         10  really opposing, but rather it depends upon the

         11  areas that we may be infringing upon, is that fair

         12  to say?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Yes,

         14  precisely, and even beyond that, Councilman Robles,

         15  we have developed a database- -

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES:  Okay.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: - -

         18  where the original intent of 193 was to develop a

         19  database.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES:  Okay.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  And

         22  we would be happy to have you look at that and

         23  whatever comments and constructive criticisms or

         24  suggestions, we would be happy to listen to and

         25  modify.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES:  Let me ask

          3  you another, because, again, there are parts of the

          4  City of which I happen to come from where we're

          5  saturated by the industry, whether it is Solid

          6  Waste, whether it is Transfer Stations, whether

          7  it's, we happen to have industrial areas that have

          8  been designated and have become in essence to the

          9  community, although people forget that there is

         10  residential surrounding, there are public

         11  facilities, schools and churches, and so I guess why

         12  my name is on this bill is because many of us feel

         13  that if we knew our neighbors were not good

         14  neighbors, when City agency, which they do, like

         15  Sanitation Department every year writes to me when

         16  it happens to be in my district of a business whose

         17  license or permit is up for renewal and they ask me

         18  to comment.  Most of the time I do not know the

         19  information that I could be helpful to them saying,

         20  not just simply like not in my backyard, no, but

         21  based upon factual information, violations whether

         22  or not you collectively you all have gone out there

         23  and found that you have issued violations for

         24  violations of laws.

         25                 I mean, I think that is the kind of

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            58

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  thing that most of us whose name is on here, is what

          3  we're looking for.  I constantly hear from the

          4  Community Boards where they feel they are not

          5  getting the kind of information they need to really

          6  make an intelligent judgement.  And so I just want

          7  to point this out that many of us are willing to

          8  work with, because the kind of information we're

          9  looking for is not really to necessarily close down

         10  businesses, but we still believe that we have the

         11  right not to allow businesses to exist either in or

         12  around our community who has no regards for.  And I

         13  think that is why I wanted to understand what you

         14  were referring to in terms of confidential

         15  information. I believe none of us, especially those

         16  of us who are elected officials, who took an oath to

         17  uphold the law would ever move forward in hindering

         18  whatever the law protects people from, and in this

         19  case, if there is kinds of information.

         20                 But I hope you understand where some

         21  of us are coming from, because this database, for

         22  example, if I go on right now, we're all hooked up

         23  to the Internet, can we go into that database

         24  currently to ascertain that information that you're

         25  referring to?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  If

          3  you need information from us, Councilman, just like

          4  we have met with you in instances when you have

          5  raised concerns in your community and very notably,

          6  we would certainly be willing to sit down with you,

          7  if you had a red flag for us and share information.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES:  No, - -

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  That,

         10  again, does not go in the area of confidentiality,

         11  and that is what you're speaking to.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES:  Right.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  And

         14  we would embrace that and that is a matter of

         15  communication.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES:  Let me be

         17  clear and let me go on record.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Sure.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES:  Because when

         20  I have brought things up to your attention, you have

         21  been very responsive and dealt with, and whenever I

         22  feel, because I'm the kind of guy, I'm like you,

         23  complaint driven, when I get the constant complaints

         24  then I will reach out to you.

         25                 But let me just take this a little
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          2  different, current, right now, as Chairman of the

          3  Health Committee, although, we have a pending law,

          4  the Department of Health moved forward and I commend

          5  them, because they implemented a database, which now

          6  I can go into their website and see which

          7  restaurants have failed their inspections.  See that

          8  is the kind of information that not, at least, I'm

          9  speaking for myself, when we say the public, we're

         10  referring to also, because now for the most part,

         11  Archie's constituent, my constituent, Stan's

         12  constituent, Helen's constituent, for the most part

         13  because of technology most, if not all, have AOL and

         14  all these other things.  And so we feel that they

         15  too, because we have very active people could go on

         16  the web and get information.

         17                 And so, my question is, currently,

         18  your database, if I go on into EPA or Sanitation

         19  Website, would I be able to ascertain those kinds of

         20  violations that, aside confidential information, but

         21  if you have gone out there and if your Right- to

         22  Know people went out there and they have now issued

         23  violations for a violation law, would we be able to

         24  know that?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  You
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          2  would not be able to get off the website, but we

          3  would be happy, for instance, if you had some, a

          4  problem in your district - -

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES:  No,

          6  Commissioner, I understand that, let me just say

          7  this, is that information, I'm just trying to

          8  understand this confidential information.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES:  Is that the

         11  kind of information that you are saying, the

         12  industry is saying is confidential?  Or is that, you

         13  know, I mean a violation is a violation?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  No,

         15  violations, again, that would not be an area of

         16  confidentiality.  The areas that I spoke about with

         17  regard to the trade secrets or with regard to

         18  security issues at that facility.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES:  No, I

         20  understand that.  But, Commissioner, I'm just trying

         21  to narrow it down as we are discussing these two

         22  bills.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  But

         24  no, we would want you to have as much information.

         25  As you said, if you had a bad player, for instance,
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          2  and someone brought something to your attention and

          3  said, Bob Avaltroni is a bad player.  Well, you do

          4  not know that to be the case, and if you had

          5  information available that I have chalked up a

          6  number of violations in the past, you can make an

          7  assessment accurately.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES:  Right.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Let me

         10  interrupt for a second, for the purposes of my

         11  distinguished member.  We're talking about the

         12  confidentially is the ones who do the reporting, who

         13  are complying with the law.  There are certain trade

         14  secrets, you know, nobody knows what goes into Coca

         15  Cola, it's not the same thing, but they do not want

         16  to let people know, so those things have to be held

         17  in confidence so that we understand.

         18                 But as far as the violations go, I

         19  would suggest that if there is a violation of a

         20  situation that would be a good thing to contact the

         21  Council members and let them know about it, and

         22  perhaps that should be a procedure - -

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  I

         24  have no problem working with any Council member.

         25  Councilman Robles raises an excellent point, and we
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          2  would not be unwilling to deal with that,

          3  absolutely.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES:  I understand

          5  that.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  It is another

          7  area of civil penalty, criminal penalty - -

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Sure.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: - -  and

         10  community outrage.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES:  Because let

         12  me tell you, and again, and I want to repeat, I

         13  brought from one of the hearings, and we sat down,

         14  and yes, you went out, and yes, what I alleged based

         15  upon my constituents something was correct because

         16  you did issue numerous violations, and those

         17  violations that you issued were not $500, you know,

         18  they were into the thousands.

         19                 I think the problem that I and my

         20  constituents has is knowing what the outcome, the

         21  disposition.  Because we know you gave it, what

         22  happens is, and that is what I'm trying to

         23  understand the kind of information that some of us

         24  are looking for, and that is, when you did that what

         25  was the actual judgement?  So that, again, and I,
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          2  let me be clear, and I do not use names here, but

          3  when the Department of Sanitation sends me a letter

          4  about a location that's permit is up for renewal and

          5  they're asking me to give a position whether we

          6  believe they should or should not, I must tell you

          7  that I do not even respond to those things.  Because

          8  if I said no, then they will say, uh, not in my

          9  backyard.  That is not the reason, what I need to

         10  know is, for example, the kind of data, whether

         11  Police enforcement, whether Sanitation enforcement,

         12  whether Environmental Protection enforcement on

         13  violations against the law.  And if I had that, when

         14  agencies then ask me for my opinion on the business,

         15  I'm doing about the factual things, not just simply

         16  saying, no, because in North Brooklyn, for example,

         17  we're very active because of all the Transfer

         18  Stations and the all the waste facilities.

         19                 So it's not that we're against per

         20  se, it's how do you, we're trying to get information

         21  that will be helpful, not only to me, but to the

         22  Community Boards and to those who publicly entitled

         23  to even under the Right- to- Know.  Okay?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Your

         25  point is well taken, Councilman, and we're certainly
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          2  willing to exchange that information with you

          3  because it does not fall into the segment of trade

          4  secret or security issues.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Thank you, Mr.

          6  Robles.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES:  One more

          8  minute, that is you, and hopefully when Sanitation,

          9  I hope they make the same commitment, because I must

         10  tell you, again, they do send me letters, you do

         11  not, and I'm not talking on top of these permits.

         12  They do not provide that kind of information,

         13  although, we have asked for it.  And I know that the

         14  Borough President of Brooklyn has consistently

         15  communicating asking for that kind of information,

         16  and consistently that is not the kind of information

         17  we have been getting.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Thank you, Mr.

         19  Robles, a very wonderful point.  We are joined,

         20  going back and forth, by Mr. Sabini of Queens,

         21  Council Member Marshall from Queens, and Council

         22  Member Freed from Manhattan.  Mr. Spigner.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER:  Yes,

         24  Commissioner, - -

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  First of all, I
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          2  would like to welcome, Mr. Spigner to this

          3  Committee.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER:  It's a joy.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And hopefully

          6  he will welcome me to his Committee at one o'clock.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER:  It's a joy

          8  and a delight being with you, Mr. Chairman.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  It's a pleasure

         10  to have you.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER:  Commissioner

         12  Avaltroni, this proposal sets up a database, but is

         13  this material already available for those in my, in

         14  the City of New York who, I assume this is on the

         15  computer, web sites, for those who do not have these

         16  resources in their home, they can still acquire this

         17  information. Am I right?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Well,

         19  again, we have a database, a Right- to- Know

         20  database that is significant.  It's not on the

         21  website, but we do, in fact, have a database that is

         22  very significant, we are enhancing that, as I

         23  alluded to in my opening testimony before you

         24  arrived, Council Member Spigner.  And what we are

         25  doing, I think, will assist us greatly, assist our
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          2  sister agencies greatly in dealing with incidents as

          3  they occur.  We have a system that is in place right

          4  now, that is responsive, but we can always make it

          5  better, and we intend to do that.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER:  All right,

          7  for example, in my particular district, which I'm

          8  particularly concerned about, their are one, two,

          9  three, four, five, six sites, the Jamaica Bus, the

         10  Transit Authority's Jamaica Bus Depot, that is at

         11  Merrick Boulevard on 7th Avenue.  The site of the

         12  Old West Side Corporation, which matter of fact to

         13  dry cleaning materials.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  I

         15  believe that is, you're dealing with the State on

         16  that, I think, the State has the responsibility for

         17  that.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER:  I

         19  understand, but you're not saying it's not my job,

         20  are you?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  No,

         22  not at all.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER:  Okay, 171st

         24  Street and 106th Avenue, Idlewild Park near Rockaway

         25  Boulevard, 100 acres that has been - -  Now all of
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          2  the information on these sites are currently on your

          3  database or on your information package that is

          4  available to the public and to the citizens.  Am I

          5  right?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  It

          7  would be - -

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER:  Is that a

          9  correct assumption?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  It

         11  would be available, if there is a filing, and again,

         12  going into the area --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER:  What do you

         14  mean by a filing, a request?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  If a

         16  company or an industry has filed with us.  Again, as

         17  I suggested before, we have had a proactive effort

         18  to increase the number of entities that file with

         19  the City of New York, and we have been very

         20  successful in that regard.  And we will continue to

         21  do that in the future.

         22                 We would be able to exchange

         23  information with you separate and apart from the

         24  things that I, again, alluded to before that would

         25  be, in fact, fall in the category of a trade secret
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          2  or security issue.  But we certainly would be

          3  willing to deal you on any of your issues on the

          4  sites you mentioned, share information with you.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER:  I want to

          6  make myself clear, if I lived on 177th Street and

          7  106th Avenue, which is a short walk to 180th Street

          8  and 107th Avenue, and I wanted to know the specifics

          9  of the material that was the source of the concern,

         10  where would I go to get the information?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  You

         12  could come to us and we would share the information

         13  with you based on our Right- to Know database.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER:  All right,

         15  okay.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER:  Now, once

         18  you learn of these sites, how is the community

         19  informed, the people living in and around the area,

         20  do you feel it is sufficient to notify the Council

         21  member, the Community Board, or you issue a press

         22  release that you put up a beware sign with a skull

         23  and cross bone, I don't know, how do you?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  I

         25  think Chairman Michels before made a very good
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          2  point, what we want to do is ensure that the public

          3  has a feeling of comfortableness that they're

          4  protected, but we do not want to create a situation

          5  where there is an element of panic where there is no

          6  issue, but the perception is that there might be an

          7  issue.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER:  Well it's

          9  hard to escape panic, it's difficult as one who has

         10  co- existed in my community with this problem.  It

         11  seems to be the human response to perceive real

         12  danger and there are others who amplify, magnify for

         13  whatever their own concerns are, their own goals to

         14  accomplishing out of a situation.  So therefore, it

         15  is even more important that factual information be

         16  available and readily accessible, that is my major

         17  concern.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  That

         19  is not a problem, Councilman, and if any of your

         20  constituents have a problem, we will, obviously, be

         21  out to that location to allay any concerns and fears

         22  and deal with any necessary party appropriately.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER:  Okay.  Now

         24  this bill increases the penalties, I'm all for

         25  increased penalties to the point to where they're
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          2  enforced or enforceable.  But if you have penalties

          3  and you have rules and regs that are not enforced,

          4  then we may as well not, we might as well not have

          5  any penalties or rules at all.  So I would hope that

          6  when we pass the bill, that the penalties that we

          7  finally agree upon be realistic and enforced.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  We

          9  concur with you totally, as I said, even under the

         10  existing rules and regs that we have, we have taken

         11  a much more proactive effort.  Believe me, where

         12  there have been violators, they have paid the

         13  penalty.  This goes a step further, and I commend

         14  the Council again, I commend the Mayor, working

         15  together to get this done where we bring in the

         16  area, the key area of criminality, because that is

         17  separate and apart from anything we have done in the

         18  past and I think that is very really very decisive.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER:  Now just one

         20  final concern, this is a parochial, the State

         21  Department of Environmental Conservation are they

         22  primarily responsible for the clean up on these

         23  sites?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  As I

         25  suggested I know you mentioned several there that
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          2  would be under the State, but we would be happy to

          3  share whatever we could with you and guide you

          4  appropriately.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER:  But this is

          6  not primarily your jurisdiction at this time?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Not

          8  necessarily, but again, if there are any

          9  misconceptions, we would be happy to discuss it with

         10  you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  What is the

         12  classification of that, is it a Brown Field?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  It

         14  quite possibly is a Brown Field.  I think one of the

         15  or a couple of the areas that Councilman Spigner

         16  referred to was a State responsibility.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And who does

         18  the classification as to what the area really is?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  I

         20  think DEC would.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  DEC would do

         22  it?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But they would

         25  do it at your asking and requesting them to do it?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Ah, -

          3   -

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Perhaps we

          5  ought to be in touch with, some of your agency ought

          6  to be in touch with DEC?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  It's

          8   - -

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Find out the

         10  classification of the site, because according to

         11  President Bush, there is evidently going to funding

         12  available to help clean up Brown Fields, so we might

         13  get the money.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  The

         15  other we call Superfund money, which is a bone of

         16  contention right now that the State is wrestling

         17  with.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  He talked

         19  specifically about Brown Field in his speech last

         20  night.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Yes,

         22  he did, and we certainly concur with that.  And, I

         23  think that, yes, the State has the responsibility.

         24  And we talk about Superfund money, rumor has it that

         25  they have exhausted some of their monies with regard
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          2  to Superfund sites, they need to go back and get

          3  that money so they can make the commitment that the

          4  President did last night.  And certainly this

          5  Administration, this Mayor supports that and I know

          6  you folks do as well.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Okay.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER:  Mr.

          9  Chairman?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER:  For the

         12  record, I too was a prime sponsor of the original

         13  Right- to- Know Bill.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Acknowledged.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER:  Just for the

         16  record.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Acknowledged

         18  and appreciated.

         19                 I guess this is the last question for

         20  you, - -

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER:  And I'm not

         22  running for re election, just for the record.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Neither am I.

         24                 The facility inventory form, the

         25  deadline is tomorrow.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Yes,

          3  that is correct.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And what can

          5  you tell us about compliance so far, and will you

          6  report to us after tomorrow as to what the

          7  compliance is, and I'm talking about compliance with

          8  the people who previously filed as well as those who

          9  should be filing?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  That

         11  will be up significantly, we have made major in-

         12  roads.  I think that, I'm not going to go into much

         13  detail here, but through the course of time, over

         14  the last, oh, year and change, we have now brought

         15  Con Ed into the situation, so we have about 20,000

         16  facilities that we expect to be filed with us.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  When you say

         18  you brought Con Ed into the situation, - -

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: - -  you mean

         21  they have to report?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Con

         23  Ed will report and Con Ed also showed a great degree

         24  of responsibility by the definition, again, I do not

         25  want to go into the details here, but the definition
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          2  of what a facility was, was an issue, because

          3  obviously there is no other entity like Con Ed out

          4  there.  They're a major player in the City of New

          5  York, they have more transformers, et cetera.  We

          6  have come to an agreement, an MOU has been signed, a

          7  check was received by DEP yesterday for over $1.1

          8  million and we will be reviewing their file and to

          9  doing inspections.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  You will be

         11  able, I do not know if you can tell us now, how many

         12  people have already complied, what the percentage of

         13  compliance is of previous filers, and what the

         14  percentage is now?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  The

         16  percentage is very high because they know if they do

         17  not comply, - -

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But you will

         19  give us the detail?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: - -

         21  we will be out to see them.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  You know we

         23  have a motto in this Committee, it is called, "The

         24  Devil is in the details."

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  And
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          2  the devil will be the details, and you will receive

          3  the details.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  We want to know

          5  that, and I appreciate your comment on it.

          6                 Mr. Sabini.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  Thank you,

          8  Mr. Chairman, I apologize for my going in and out,

          9  but we have other duties today.              Commissioner

         10  Avaltroni, regarding 692, which is initiated by the

         11  Administration, just some sort of background

         12  questions, what kind of materials were often dumped

         13  because we have seen them locally in areas that I

         14  represent, what is your experience in what is

         15  dumped?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  I'm

         17  going to defer it to Kim Hanna for you, she can

         18  describe that a lot better.

         19                 MS. HANNA:  In the five boroughs - -

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  It's previous

         21  to your being here, she told us of her extensive

         22  qualifications and they're really impressive, so we

         23  have a real expert in front of us.

         24                 MS. HANNA:  That is very kind of you.

         25

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            78

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 Sir, I have been doing Emergency

          3  Response for Hazmat for 10 years almost, and from my

          4  experience the most common types of abandonments of

          5  containers, the substances inside of them are

          6  typically waste products because they're typically

          7  of no value to anyone so they do not want to pay to

          8  properly dispose of them. These materials consist of

          9  flammable substances.  Sometimes it is typical as

         10  gasoline, sometimes very exotic materials like jet

         11  fuels and all kinds of very strange things that have

         12  all been used or contaminated.  We have solvents,

         13  very flammable solvents, which also can be

         14  potentially explosive in containers, especially in

         15  warm summer days.  We have acids and alkali

         16  materials, which are corrosives and can cause quite

         17  a bit of health problems for anyone who might

         18  contact them.

         19                 Also we find a lot of plating wastes,

         20  which are aqueous solutions though that they contain

         21  heavy metals, toxic metals and things like that.  So

         22  to categorize the materials, I would say they were

         23  flammables, they're corrosives and toxins,

         24  primarily.  Every once in a while, you do find a

         25  reactive substance, as well, but that is not as
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          2  common.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Radioactive.

          4                 MS. HANNA:  No, not radioactive, Sir,

          5  reactive, meaning that a chemical, if released it

          6  can be unstable - -

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  Right.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Yes.

          9                 MS. HANNA: - -  and it can go through

         10  a chemical reaction and either explode or - -

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  What we were

         12  talking about before.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  It's not good

         14  either way.

         15                 MS. HANNA:  Yes, Sir.  Sorry?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  It's not good

         17  either way. As someone who had an earlier life where

         18  I represented companies that insured and underwrote

         19  cradle the grave forms of environmental insurance,

         20  how is the Department and even DOS, how well

         21  equipped are you to trace when you find something,

         22  what is our success rate? I mean, I know you cannot

         23  quantify it, because sometimes if a truck leaves

         24  stuff and the truck is abandoned, as I had in my

         25  district where an entire back end of a truck was
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          2  just left on the street full of organic substance

          3  that comes out of animals, at least you have a

          4  license plate.  There are other situations where

          5  canisters were dumped along the BQE and you know,

          6  what is the success rate in finding the dumpers?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Well

          8  we, again, to speak to some of the things we have

          9  done over the last couple of years, we're able to go

         10  out, as you suggested Councilman Sabini, and if we

         11  have an incident, we're able to go out and have a

         12  mobile lab come out and conduct a study right there

         13  and then, and to determine what the nature of the

         14  element we're dealing with is.

         15                 In prior years, prior to Commissioner

         16  Miele coming on board and myself, we would have to

         17  ship it back to a certain location and have it come

         18  out back to the site.  So we're able to make a

         19  pretty definitive statement when we're out there

         20  that what we know we are dealing with, and the clean

         21  up then can commence a lot more currently and we do

         22  not disrupt the community, as much as we can.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  But that does

         24  not only answer my question, what is the success

         25  rate, are you able to find people?
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          2                 MS. HANNA:  There are several times

          3  that our own personnel will be out there and they

          4  will, we find people frequently, we don't find them

          5  all the time.  We trace drums through lot numbers,

          6  if lot numbers are left, we will call the company.

          7  If there is a label on the drum, but no mailing

          8  address or no indication of where it may come from -

          9   -

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  Do you have

         11  the staff to do that work now?

         12                 MS. HANNA:  Our staff when they go

         13  out to an emergency or a complaint of a container on

         14  the street that is abandoned, those things are

         15  automatic, it is part of the routine, they need to

         16  do that.  They need to check out the neighborhood

         17  and see if, you know, within the few street blocks

         18  if it could have come from a nearby facility,

         19  because many times it does.  And we have actually,

         20  we would go into these facilities where we would see

         21  the same drums or the same type of waste drums that

         22  they dump their material into.  And if we can not

         23  get them, which many times we will get them, to

         24  admit because they get caught, we will then call the

         25  DEC Police out, and they do not want the DEC Police
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          2  to come out.

          3                 So our own personnel, whether to say,

          4  for example, DEC Police comes out or Sanitation

          5  Police comes out, we get them through, at least,

          6  those threats to get them to take the drum.  And

          7  many times what we will do, is we will issue them an

          8  Order to take the drum and will indicate that

          9  they're going to have very significant violations if

         10  they don't because we matched the lot number to

         11  their lot number, or the street address, or the

         12  shipping address.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  My experience

         14  has been, I think in almost every instance, it has

         15  been adjacent to the BQE, so I do not think they're

         16  people that they're nearby, but rather people

         17  passing through.

         18                 Are the fines that are in 692 going

         19  to cover the cost of the disposal of the items that

         20  will be the contraband resulting in the fines?

         21                 MS. HANNA:  If in the event we cannot

         22  get a responsible party to remove the drum and pay

         23  for the disposal, yes, then we will arrange for a

         24  contractor to come out and we will dispose of it.

         25  And if necessary, we will even put site security on

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            83

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  the drum - -

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  I understand

          4  that, my question was, do the fines in 692 cover the

          5  cost of that?

          6                 MS. HANNA:  And, yes, there are cost

          7  recovery clauses in the Spill Bill, as well.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  Even, what

          9  I'm saying, I guess the follow- up would be the

         10  fines are in addition to cost recovery?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  That

         12  is correct.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  Okay.  Right

         14  now the Department of Consumer Affairs requires home

         15  improvement contractors to pay part of the licensing

         16  fee into this fund that is used to compensate people

         17  who are victims of unscrupulous home improvement

         18  contractors, and I'm wondering if the City has any

         19  system by which you would set up a fund where people

         20  who use hazardous material would pay a fee into a

         21  fund where then that fund would be used to pay for

         22  disposal of illegally dumped materials, is there any

         23  licensure set up that you could use where you would

         24  impress a fund that would be, you know, a none, an

         25  off- budget way of dealing with this?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  We

          3  have never, honestly, considered that, Councilman.

          4  Again, we have had significant success in having the

          5  clean ups paid for by the responsible party, and as

          6  you said before, the fines are separate and apart,

          7  so that has not been really at issue.  And I guess

          8  the flip side to that would be if there was a fund

          9  available, would we have people that are violators

         10  then trying to escape the responsibility to pay

         11  directly, knowing that there is a fund available?

         12                 We never considered that, that is a

         13  novel approach, I mean, that is just off of the top

         14  of my head.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Just a final

         17  thing, as we appreciate your doing, but we want to

         18  hear from the Department of Sanitation.  Would you

         19  please identify yourself and give your statement?

         20                 You can stay there or leave, whatever

         21  you want, but we appreciate your cooperation.  We

         22  look forward to working with you on these bills.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SANTANGELO:

         24  Good morning.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Good morning.
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SANTANGELO:

          3  Good morning, Chairman Michels.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Thank you for

          5  being so patient.  We like to take one agency at a

          6  time.

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SANTANGELO:

          8  Well this is obviously of great concern to the

          9  Department of Sanitation as well. And this

         10  discussion has been very interesting and

         11  enlightening, and so it was a good opportunity.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I think you

         13  better identify yourself, before saying thanks all.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SANTANGELO:

         15  I'm Anna Marie Santangelo, Assistant Commissioner

         16  for Legal Affairs of the New York City Department of

         17  Sanitation, and I'm here today with Al Rahner, who

         18  is our Manhattan Borough Commissioner, and we're

         19  here to speak in favor of Intro. 692 introduced by

         20  Chairperson Michels and Council Members Freed,

         21  Leffler and Rivera at the request of the Mayor.

         22                 Intro. 692, as we know, amends Title

         23  24, Chapter 6 of the New York City Administrative

         24  Code, known as the Spill Bill, to expand the

         25  definition of release to include the abandonment of
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          2  a container containing a hazardous substance to

          3  increase the monetary penalties for failure to

          4  comply with the Department of Environmental

          5  Protection Order to clean up a hazardous substance

          6  release, and to create criminal penalties for

          7  failure to comply with any of the notification and

          8  clean up requirements of the Spill Bill.

          9                 As we know an extremely unfortunate

         10  tragedy the death of a uniformed Sanitation worker,

         11  Michael Hanly, a 22 year Department veteran,

         12  underscores the need for the legislative action

         13  under discussion today.  Briefly, the facts of that

         14  tragic incident are as follows:

         15                 On Tuesday, November 12th, 1996,

         16  Sanitation workers Michael Hanly and Thomas

         17  Giammarino were on regular Sanitation collection

         18  duties in the Bensonhurst section of Brooklyn.  A

         19  plastic container of hydrofluoric acid had been left

         20  for curbside collection in the vicinity of 84th

         21  Street and New Utrickt Avenue. The container after

         22  being placed in the collection truck burst during

         23  the compaction process, splashing Mr. Hanly who

         24  suffered severe injuries and died later that day

         25  from those injuries in the emergency room at Cornell
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          2  Burn Unit of New York Hospital.

          3                 Currently, some violators of the

          4  Spill Bill avoid paying fines levied for violations

          5  while continuing to operate in violation of the law,

          6  and perhaps others consider paying fines for

          7  violations of the Spill Bill as a cost of doing

          8  business and continue to operate negligently with

          9  hazardous materials at the risk of the general

         10  public and the City Sanitation workers, even after

         11  paying the maximum fine for a violation.

         12  Accordingly, the Department's strongly supports an

         13  increase in penalties, including the creation of

         14  criminal sanctions for those violators who continue

         15  to operate negligently and violate the requirements

         16  of the Spill Bill.

         17                 To deter violators and to prevent

         18  serious public health risks associated with these

         19  violations, DEP must be able to levy more

         20  significant fines and to pursue criminal penalties.

         21  The Department and the City must act to prevent a

         22  repeat of the Michael Hanly tragedy happening to

         23  another Sanitation worker or a member of the public.

         24

         25                 I urge your favorable vote on this
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          2  bill and I'm available to answer any questions.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Okay, the only

          4  question I would have is that as you heard from

          5  testimony previously from Bob Avaltroni, is that

          6  they do work with other agencies, such as yourself,

          7  with respect to hazardous materials, and the

          8  question is whether or not the coordination is as

          9  good as we would like it to be?  And when you come

         10  across a hazardous, when your agency comes across a

         11  hazardous material, and I'm sure you have had

         12  situations that where you had to refer to the

         13  Department of Environmental Protection; isn't that

         14  true?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SANTANGELO:

         16  Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Do you keep

         18  records of that?

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SANTANGELO:

         20  Yes, we do.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  So could you,

         22  maybe not now, but some other future time, hopefully

         23  very soon, tell me how many referrals you have had

         24  to the agency and whether or not the response has

         25  been satisfactory?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SANTANGELO:

          3  Yes, we can certainly do that.  And to my knowledge,

          4  the cooperation is excellent both with DEP and with

          5  the State Department of Environmental Conservation.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I would expect

          7  it would be, because it is the mutual benefit of

          8  both agencies, and also mutual benefit of the

          9  personnel of your agency, because all we have to

         10  have is one more incident like the Hanly incident,

         11  and which we're trying to avoid under all

         12  circumstances so it is really very important.

         13                 Council Member Robles.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES:  Commissioner,

         15  you were sitting there when I was speaking to the

         16  Commissioner, so let me just perhaps, because I

         17  noticed you were focusing on 692, not also Intro.

         18  193, but let me just perhaps be general and then to

         19  the point.  Do you have a data bank where when your

         20  personnel go out and find violations for whatever

         21  the reasons may be, particularly, I'm referring to

         22  those locations where you have either waste, solid

         23  waste operations or transfer stations of which you

         24  give a permit to, do you have that kind of data bank

         25  currently?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SANTANGELO:

          3  We currently have and more so really are in the

          4  process of creating a much more sophisticated and

          5  comprehensive history, which I think is what your

          6  interested in.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES:  Right.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SANTANGELO:

          9  Up to this point, you know, there are difficulties

         10  when you have a number of agencies involved, State

         11  agencies, City agencies, and then you also have

         12  various judicatory bodies involved trying to bring

         13  all of that information together.  We are, and as

         14  you know, the Council recently passed legislation

         15  that would require that with respect to private

         16  generators of commercial waste and private waste

         17  haulers and transfer stations and so on, the City

         18  will be putting together much more comprehensive

         19  information than was available and also required in

         20  the past, so we're at the process of doing that.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES:  I understand

         22  that.  I may not be around by the time you give me

         23  the information that is my dilemma.  I still have 10

         24  months and I will hope to see something, let me just

         25  be to the point.  Stick to your own agency, you do

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            91

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  have people go out and you do issue violations or

          3  you find violations, you do issue violations,

          4  correct?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SANTANGELO:

          6  Correct.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES:  Okay, I

          8  guess, when this annual renewal process, why is it

          9  that the agency when they send us these letters do

         10  not include, forget about the other agencies for the

         11  moment, but why do not you include what you have in

         12  your data bank so that it would help us to respond

         13  to your letters?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SANTANGELO:

         15  Well, first let me say that I think your point is

         16  very well taken, because we're asking for a response

         17  and an opinion and an evaluation.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES:  Right.

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SANTANGELO:

         20  And if there is information that is generally

         21  available that would help to frame that answer, - -

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES:  Right.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SANTANGELO: -

         24   -  then it certainly helps the person being asked

         25  for a response to have that information.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES:  Right.

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SANTANGELO:  I

          4  think up to this point, there are a few things.

          5  One, perhaps, the information has not all been

          6  available in one central place so it is not that

          7  easy to pull it together and provide it.  And two, I

          8  think that the view has been that we're asking

          9  elected officials to provide information that they

         10  may have available to them that the agency does not

         11  necessarily already have.  So you may have reports

         12  of incidents or you may have constituent complaints,

         13  or you may even have personal knowledge that would

         14  be very helpful to us and add into the Department's

         15  ability to make a decision.

         16                 But, again, I think your point is

         17  well taken and I think we need to look into revising

         18  how the request is made and what is provided at that

         19  point.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I think he has

         21  made a very good point, and I think, perhaps, you

         22  should provide that information.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES:  May I

         24  conclude by saying, because you see I hear, because

         25  the time that I have been in this Committee, clearly
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          2  the Environmental Protection and Sanitation are two

          3  agencies are very critical as we look to the

          4  overall.  And I keep hearing about this great

          5  coordination, which I'm not being critical, that may

          6  be so, but coordination also means sharing

          7  information.  And so, I respectfully ask, as, again,

          8  I only have 10 months left, but you know, we have to

          9  move get off the dime, I mean, we're into

         10  technology, I mean, we're spending a lot of money

         11  into technology and computers, and yet, we have

         12  these hearings and basic information that we ask, we

         13  cannot get, and that is my frustration, and it is

         14  hypocritical for anyone to think they're doing a

         15  great job when the perception out in the communities

         16  that are affected every single day, you are going to

         17  all the Ph.D's in front and back of your name, is

         18  meaningless to the people I represent when they have

         19  to smell it, when they have to see it, when they

         20  have to, you know, step all over it.

         21                 And so, maybe I'm getting frustrated,

         22  Mr. Chairman, but as we move ahead with these

         23  things, these hearings and we talk about it, I mean,

         24  Intro. 193 is just as important, as far as I'm

         25  concerned, as is also 692, and that is why I'm
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          2  supporting both. But I do not believe we should do,

          3  because you continue at piecemeal and band- aides

          4  approach thinking because we did one, okay, the

          5  other one is not important.  Well, excuse me, as far

          6  as I'm concerned they're both important.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  They're not

          8  mutually exclusive, and you're correct on that.

          9  Thank you very much, both of you, both agencies, I

         10  appreciate your being here.  Did you want to say

         11  something?  Well it's good to have you here and good

         12  to see my Borough Chief here, be appreciative.

         13                 Our next witness is Colleen Keegan of

         14  the Health Care Unit, Health Care Without Harm, the

         15  Mount Sinai School of Medicine, David Muchnick and

         16  Brian Jantzen of Full Circle. Welcome, we look

         17  forward to hearing your testimony.

         18                 MS. KEEGAN:  Go, okay, is this on?

         19  Good morning, Mr. Chairman, my name is Colleen

         20  Keegan.  I'm a registered nurse and Project Director

         21  of the New York City Chapter of Health Care Without

         22  Harm.  Health Care Without Harm is the campaign for

         23  environmentally responsible health care.  The New

         24  York City Chapter is located at Mount Sinai School

         25  of Medicine's Department of Community and Preventive
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          2  Medicine.

          3                 Health Care Without Harm is a

          4  coalition of over 250 organizations in 34 countries

          5  that promotes the reduction of harmful environmental

          6  impacts of health care facilities.  Health Care

          7  Without Harm's mission is to transform the health

          8  care industry by eliminating pollution in health

          9  care practices without compromising safety or care.

         10                 This is my first time appearing

         11  before the New York City Council, and I appreciate

         12  the opportunity to take a few moments of your time

         13  to introduce myself, our organizations and our

         14  concerns to you.

         15                 Health Care Without Harm welcomes the

         16  City Council's increasing concern with release and

         17  emission of hazardous materials in the City as

         18  evidenced by the two measures before you today, as

         19  well as the mercury manometer bill introduced

         20  previously by Councilman Spigner.

         21                 Our particular concern is with the

         22  hazards which mercury and mercury- containing

         23  products and equipment used in health care pose to

         24  New Yorkers.  The proposals before you today may not

         25  be intended to cover such items as fever
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          2  thermometers and blood pressure monitors, dilation

          3  and feeding tubes, batteries and fluorescent lamps.

          4  But, we would like to call your - -

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  You're correct

          6  it's not, it's not only, but it's not, we are having

          7  a hearing this afternoon in the Housing and Building

          8  Committee on the mercury.

          9                 MS. KEEGAN:  Sorry?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Isn't that on

         11  mercury?  I think the hearing this afternoon is with

         12  respect to mercury, at one o'clock in the Housing

         13  and Building Committee.

         14                 MS. KEEGAN:  Oh, okay, I will just

         15  finish with my presentation, okay, thank you for the

         16  information.

         17                 But, we would like to call your

         18  attention to the facts that the release of mercury

         19  from these items, if broken, and the emission of

         20  volatized mercury vapors, if these releases are

         21  improperly cleaned up, pose serious health risks;

         22  and, that non toxic substitute products are

         23  available for nearly all mercury containing medical

         24  products.

         25                 Because of the common - -
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  So perhaps you

          3  better hang around this afternoon and listen to the

          4  hearing on the mercury in the Housing and Building

          5  Committee.  This hearing has nothing to do with

          6  mercury.

          7                 MS. KEEGAN:  Right.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  It may be a

          9  hazardous material, but not in the sense, it

         10  contaminates water and I know the problem with it.

         11  So if you want to continue, we will enter this into

         12  the record as what your statement is, if you would

         13  like us to.

         14                 MS. KEEGAN:  Okay.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But it is

         16  really wrong, it is not the same subject.

         17                 MS. KEEGAN:  All right.  Do you mind

         18  if I continue?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Yes, we have a

         20  limited time, if you want to finish just summarize

         21  in your own words.  We will make sure it is in the

         22  record though.

         23                 MS. KEEGAN:  Yes, I guess the point,

         24  my point is that we're looking to expand what you're

         25  looking at, and that mercury is hazardous.  A report
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          2  issued by the National Academy of Sciences last July

          3  estimated that up to sixty thousand children were

          4  born each year have been exposed to mercury and it

          5  interferes with their development of the brain and

          6  nervous systems.

          7                 And I would be interested in further

          8  meetings with the Council to talk about this

          9  subject.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Sure, you have

         11  a right to say, we're talking about substances which

         12  leak or are abandoned in buildings and such that

         13  have potential for exploding or catching on fire,

         14  and then causing a problem to Emergency Response

         15  Teams.

         16                 MS. KEEGAN:  Okay.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  We're fully

         18  aware of the danger of mercury in the water and in

         19  the fish.  So I really appreciate your being here.

         20  But I will put this in the record, and I wanted to

         21  advise you about the hearing we're having on mercury

         22  in the Housing and Buildings Committee.  Okay?

         23                 Next we have David Muchnick and Brian

         24  Jantzen, Full circle, thank you, welcome.  Please

         25  utilize the mic and state your name for the record,
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          2  we're listening to what you have to say?

          3                 MR. JANTZEN:  My name is Brian

          4  Jantzen, and this is my first appearance before the

          5  City Council.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  We hope we make

          7  you feel welcome.

          8                 MR. JANTZEN:  Well so far you have.

          9  I appreciate the opportunity to introduce myself, my

         10  company, my industry and some of our concerns.  With

         11  me today is Dr. David Muchnick, a consultant to our

         12  organization.  I am the President of Full Circle,

         13  Inc., which has been located in the Hunts Point

         14  section of the Bronx since 1991.  I'm also the

         15  Chairman- elect of the Association of Lighting and

         16  Mercury Recyclers, which is a nationwide trade

         17  association.

         18                 I have been in the environmental and

         19  hazardous waste industry for over twenty years.  My

         20  experience includes asbestos and lead based paint

         21  management, as well as recycling and disposal for

         22  small waste generators, dry cleaners and body shops

         23  up to large manufacturers of various types of

         24  hazardous waste.

         25                 Since I started almost a decade ago,

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            100

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  more than 2,000 customers have utilized our

          3  services, such as hospitals, schools and

          4  universities, manufacturing concerns, et cetera.  We

          5  have emerged as one of the nationwide leaders in the

          6  recycling of fluorescent light ballasts, lamps,

          7  batteries, transformers and computers.

          8                 We applaud the Council's increasing

          9  concern with the release and emission of hazardous

         10  materials in the City.  We welcome the two measures

         11  under consideration today as well as the Mercury

         12  Manometer Bill introduced previously by Councilman

         13  Spigner.            Also, we encourage the Council

         14  to consider a comprehensive bill regulating the

         15  sale, use, disposal and recycling of mercury and

         16  mercury- containing products.  One example of such a

         17  measure is the bill introduced in Albany by

         18  Westchester's Assemblyman Richard Brodsky, and in

         19  the Senate by State Senator Michael Balboni.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Assemblyman

         21  Brodsky is the Chair of the Assembly's Environmental

         22  Protection Committee.

         23                 MR. JANTZEN:  Similar legislation has

         24  also been passed recently by the states of Vermont,

         25  Maine and Connecticut. We have attached the state
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          2  bill, which I'm sure you are familiar with, as well

          3  as an outline of a proposed measure that would be a

          4  comprehensive mercury reduction bill.

          5                 We are concerned about the hazards

          6  which mercury and mercury- containing products and

          7  equipment pose to New Yorkers as matters of

          8  responsible solid waste management, of environmental

          9  stewardship, and of personal health and occupational

         10  safety.

         11                 Spent fluorescent lamps, for example,

         12  are on of the major sources of mercury entering the

         13  environment after incinerators and power plants,

         14  they accounted for approximately 20 tons of mercury

         15  nationwide in 1999.  Accordingly, the US

         16  Environmental Protection Agency place fluorescent

         17  lamps under the Universal Waste Rule on January 6th,

         18  2000; the agency anticipates the annual recycling

         19  rate to increase from 20 percent last year to 60

         20  percent over the next few years.  The New York State

         21  Department of Environmental Conservation also

         22  regulates lamps under UWR.

         23                 The reason we are here today is that

         24  we estimate the close to 25 million spent

         25  fluorescent lamps are discarded in New York City
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          2  alone each year, and that less than 10 percent of

          3  those are recycled.  And this, as the estimates,

          4  close to a ton a mercury going into the solid waste

          5  stream annually, just from fluorescent lamps.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  This hearing is

          7  today is about the leakage and the problems, with

          8  the abandonment and leakage of hazardous materials

          9  in buildings, which is, it's a fine line, but it's a

         10  difference.  We hear what you're saying and we

         11  appreciate what you're doing, and I never heard

         12  testimony with respect to the fluorescent lights

         13  before.

         14                 MR. JANTZEN:  Well, frankly, Mr.

         15  Chairman, again, that is why we're here.  We

         16  consider, we think that mercury and fluorescent

         17  lamps should be included in that list of hazardous

         18  components.  So therefore, it is under previous

         19  testimony, if there is a drum of jet fuel there and

         20  there are 150 fluorescent lamps, half of them

         21  broken, they're also a hazard, and we think that

         22  should be included in the bill.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Well I don't

         24  know, you see we're not specifying hazardous

         25  materials.  We are using the already existing lists
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          2  both general and specific.  I'm sure if there is a

          3  drum of mercury that is on the list and then the

          4  bill does pertain to that.  Although I never heard

          5  of a drum of mercury, God forbid, we should that

          6  much mercury in one place.

          7                 MR. JANTZEN:  Well as - -

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But you're

          9  saying that in the fluorescent lights it does

         10  contain mercury.

         11                 MR. JANTZEN:  Absolutely, a

         12  fluorescent lamp, one and in itself, contains a very

         13  small amount.  However, there is an acute exposure

         14  if that lamp breaks and it would generally exceed

         15  the OSHA permitted exposure level.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  People are not

         17  aware of that because I have seen broken fluorescent

         18  lamps.

         19                 MR. JANTZEN:  With all due respect,

         20  that is why we're here trying to, you know, just - -

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  That is very

         22  important, that is very good, but I'm talking about,

         23  as I said, that is not really the subject.

         24                 MR. JANTZEN:  If I may also - -

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Please,
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          2  continue.

          3                 MR. JANTZEN:  No, no, I'm sorry.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Continue, I'm

          5  sorry.

          6                 MR. JANTZEN:  Well if I may also add,

          7  New York State has a contract for the recycling

          8  Office of General Services of their fluorescent

          9  lamps.  The Port of Authority of New York and New

         10  Jersey has a contract for this type material.  To

         11  the best of my knowledge no New York City agency has

         12  a contract for the recycling of fluorescent lamps.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  It's not one of

         14  the materials we recycle.

         15                 MR. JANTZEN:  But not so much from a

         16  recycling perspective - -

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Glass, glass is

         18  a material that is recycled, but this is a substance

         19  that has deleterious situations recycling.  So

         20  you're saying you're recycling the mercury itself.

         21                 MR. JANTZEN:  Right, and many - -

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  We do not even

         23  do batteries.

         24                 MR. JANTZEN:  Excuse me?  Well many

         25  cities, such as Boston, recently have banned the
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          2  sale of thermometers, and there is a lot of pending

          3  and existing legislation that is out there, and

          4  we're, basically trying - -

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Certainly an

          6  area we should look into.

          7                 MR. MUCHNICK:  Mr. Chairman, if I may

          8  add, I know that one of the impetuses to this

          9  hearing was Sanitation issues of safety for

         10  Sanitation workers and handling.  And I think that

         11  the issue of fluorescent lamps and medical products

         12  that contain mercury is also very much an

         13  occupational and personal health and safety issue,

         14  because it is not just a single or two or three

         15  fluorescent tubes or a blood pressure cuff or two or

         16  three mercury thermometers, but if one looks at the

         17  waste handling room of any commercial office

         18  building in the City and thinks in terms of two or

         19  three or four or thirty or forty a day being broken

         20  in that waste handling room and thrown in a

         21  compactor that is emitting significant amounts of

         22  mercury vapor.  And I would suggest potentially

         23  sufficient levels to meet the New York State

         24  standards of Department of Health requiring

         25  evacuation of those premises.
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          2                 So I think it is a question, as you

          3  say you're not terribly familiar with it, neither

          4  was I before working with Colleen and Brian.  But I

          5  think the question is one, we're not familiar with

          6  it because none of us has really asked the question

          7  as to what is the nature of those emissions.  And I

          8  suggest it that it would be a helpful - -

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I was not even

         10  aware that mercury was involved in fluorescent

         11  bulbs.

         12                 MR. MUCHNICK:  Nor was I until about

         13  three months ago.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But now I'm

         15  aware of it, I appreciate what you're doing.

         16                 MR. MUCHNICK:  Thank you very much.

         17                 MR. JANTZEN:  Thank you very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Being no

         19  further witnesses, this meeting is adjourned.  Thank

         20  you.

         21                 (Hearing adjourned at 12:00 p.m.)

         22                 (The following testimony was read

         23  into the record.)

         24

         25  Testimony of:
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          2  Colleen Keegan, R.N.

          3  Project Director, New York City Chapter

          4  Health Care Without Harm

          5

          6                 My name is Colleen Keegan and I am a

          7  registered nurse and the Project Director of the New

          8  York City Chapter of Health Care Without Harm

          9  (HCWH).  HCWH is a campaign for environmentally

         10  responsible health care.  The NYC chapter is located

         11  a Mount Sinai School of Medicine's Department of

         12  Community and Preventive Medicine.

         13                 Health Care Without Harm is a

         14  coalition of over 250 organizations in 34 countries

         15  that promotes the reduction of the harmful

         16  environmental impacts of health care facilities.

         17  HCWH's mission is to transformation the health care

         18  industry by eliminating pollution in health care

         19  practices without compromising safety or care.

         20                 This is my first time appearing

         21  before the New York City Council, and I appreciate

         22  the opportunity to take a few moments of your time

         23  to introduce myself, our organization, and our

         24  concerns to you.

         25                 HCWH welcomes the City Council's
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          2  increasing concern with release and emission of

          3  hazardous materials in the City as evidenced by the

          4  two measures before you today, as well as the

          5  mercury manometer bill introduced previously by

          6  Councilman Spigner.

          7                 Our particular concern is with the

          8  hazards which mercury and mercury- containing

          9  products and equipment used in health care pose to

         10  New Yorkers.  The proposals before you today may not

         11  be intended to cover such items as fever

         12  thermometers and blood pressure monitors

         13  (sphygmomanometers), dilation and feeding tubes,

         14  batteries and fluorescent lamps.

         15                 But, we would like to call your

         16  attention to the facts:

         17                 That the release of mercury from

         18  these items, if broken, and the emission of

         19  volatized mercury vapors, if these releases are

         20  improperly cleaned up, pose serious health risks;

         21  and,

         22                 That non- toxic substitutes

         23  (products) are available for nearly all mercury-

         24  containing medical products.

         25                 Because of the common use of these
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          2  items in many hospitals, medical waste may account

          3  for 20 per cent of the mercury in the solid waste

          4  stream.  The USEPA estimates that medical waste

          5  incinerators are responsible for 10 per cent of

          6  mercury air emissions.

          7                 The federal governments of both the

          8  United States and Canada have called for the virtual

          9  elimination of human uses and releases of mercury

         10  because mercury pollution is already widespread.

         11                 Thirty- nine states have determined

         12  that all or some of their lakes, streams and rivers

         13  are too contaminated with mercury to allow people to

         14  eat fish and seafood from those bodies of water,

         15  according to the USEPA's 1997 Report to Congress.

         16                 Only one half of a gram of mercury,

         17  the amount found in most fever thermometers can

         18  contaminate all of the fish in a 20 acre lake.

         19  (USEPA)

         20                 Mercury is a potent neurotoxin, which

         21  means it attacks the body's central nervous system.

         22  Neurotoxic risks to developing fetuses and young

         23  children are the primary reasons for fish

         24  consumption advisories, which aim to discourage

         25  pregnant women, women of child- bearing age, and
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          2  young children from eating too much fish.  Studies

          3  done on women who ate methyl mercury contaminated

          4  fish or grain showed that even when the mothers

          5  showed few effects of exposure, their infants

          6  demonstrated nervous- system damage.

          7                 Indeed, a report issued by the

          8  National Academy of Sciences last July estimated

          9  that up to 60,000 children were born each year who

         10  had been exposed during pregnancy to levels of

         11  mercury that could interfere with development of

         12  their brainstem and nervous systems.

         13                 Mercury not only attacks the body's

         14  central nervous system; it can also harm the brain,

         15  kidneys and lungs.  It can cross the blood- brain

         16  barrier as well as the placenta.  Methyl mercury

         17  from contaminated fish easily crosses the placenta

         18  and enters the brain of the developing fetus.  The

         19  critical effect from potential exposure to methyl

         20  mercury is mental retardation.

         21                 In 1998, HCWH participated in the

         22  process that led to the American Hospital

         23  Association's decision to sign a Memorandum of

         24  Understanding with the USEPA.  This memorandum,

         25  which pledges to cut waste within the hospital
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          2  system in half by the year 2010, calls for phasing

          3  the use of mercury out of hospitals by the year

          4  2005.

          5                 For these reasons, we would welcome

          6  the opportunity to work with the Council to develop

          7  measure to ban fever thermometers, or other

          8  comprehensive measures to eliminate mercury and

          9  mercury containing products from the city.

         10                 I'll be happy to answer any questions

         11  you may have at this time or to meet with your staff

         12  at their convenience. Thank you.

         13

         14  Testimony of:

         15  Brian Jantzen

         16  President

         17  Full Circle, Inc.

         18

         19                 My name is Brian Jantzen, and I am

         20  the President of Full Circle, Inc., which has been

         21  located in the Hunts Point section of the Bronx

         22  since 1991.  Full Circle is a subsidiary of publicly

         23  traded Environmental Technologies Corporation.  I am

         24  also the Chairman- elect of the Association of

         25  Lighting and Mercury Recyclers, which is a
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          2  nationwide trade association.

          3                 I have been in the environmental and

          4  hazardous waste industry for over 20 years.  My

          5  experience includes asbestos and lead based paint

          6  management, as well as recycling and disposal for

          7  generators of all sizes, from dry cleaners and body

          8  shops to large manufacturers.

          9                 With me today is David Muchnick, a

         10  consultant to Full Circle, who has decades of

         11  experience with environmentally beneficial economic

         12  development in the Bronx.

         13                 Since our start almost a decade ago,

         14  more than 2,000 customers nationwide have utilized

         15  our safe and economical recycling and disposal

         16  services.  These include hospitals, schools and

         17  universities, manufacturers, office buildings,

         18  contractors, et cetera.  Full Circle has emerged as

         19  one of the leaders in the proper management of

         20  fluorescent light ballasts, lamps, batteries,

         21  transformers and computers. (A ballast is the device

         22  which carries electricity to the bulb in a

         23  fluorescent fixture).  Our services enable these

         24  companies to protect their employees as well as the

         25  environment.
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          2                 In the last eight years, for example,

          3  Full Circle has handled over 50 million pounds of

          4  PCB ballasts.  We have removed and recycled 40

          5  million pounds of scrap metal from these ballasts.

          6  We have properly disposed of the 10 million pounds

          7  of PCBs they contained, protecting the environment

          8  from 10 times as many PCBs as were dumped into the

          9  Hudson River by General Electric.

         10                 This is my first appearance before

         11  the City Council, and I appreciate the opportunity

         12  to introduce myself, my company and industry, and

         13  our concerns to you.

         14                 We applaud the Council's increasing

         15  concern with the release and emission of hazardous

         16  materials in the city.  We welcome the two measures

         17  under consideration today as well as the Mercury

         18  Manometer Bill introduced previously by Councilman

         19  Spigner.

         20                 Also, we encourage the Council to

         21  consider a comprehensive bill regulating the sale,

         22  use, disposal and recycling of mercury and mercury-

         23  containing products.  One example of such a measure

         24  is the bill introduced in Albany by Westchester's

         25  Assemblyman Richard Brodsky, and in the Senate by
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          2  State Senator Michael Balboni.  Another is the model

          3  legislation drafted by the Northeast Waste

          4  Management Official's Association (NEWMOA). Similar

          5  legislation has also been passed recently by the

          6  states of Vermont, Maine and Connecticut.  Attached

          7  to my testimony is the state bill, as well as an

          8  outline of a proposed measure that could incorporate

          9  many of these ideas into the New York City

         10  environment.

         11                 We are concerned about the hazards

         12  which mercury and mercury- containing products and

         13  equipment pose to New Yorkers as matters of

         14  responsible solid waste management, of environmental

         15  stewardship, and of personal health and occupational

         16  safety.

         17                 Spent fluorescent lamps, for example,

         18  are one of the major sources of mercury entering the

         19  environment (after incinerators and power plants).

         20  They accounted for approximately 20 tons of mercury

         21  nationwide in 1999.  Accordingly, the US

         22  Environmental Protection Agency places fluorescent

         23  lamps under the universal Waste Rule (UWR) on

         24  January 6, 2000; the agency anticipates the annual

         25  recycling rate to increase from 20 percent last year
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          2  to 60 percent over the next few years.  The New York

          3  State Department of Environmental Conservation also

          4  regulates lamps under UWR.

          5                 We estimate that close to 25 million

          6  spent fluorescent lamps are discarded in New York

          7  City alone each year, and that less than 10 percent

          8  of these are recycled.  The improper disposal of

          9  this material accounts for the release of nearly a

         10  ton of mercury annually into the solid waste stream.

         11                 Most of the discarded fluorescent

         12  lamps are now found in the commercial waste stream.

         13  As fluorescents are increasingly marketed for use in

         14  the residential sector, they will show up more and

         15  more in the city's residential waste stream.

         16                 As they do, the mercury vapors

         17  emitted from broken lamps will pose increasing

         18  health risks to the buildings porters and custodians

         19  who work in small, enclosed spaces preparing them

         20  for waste disposal.  They will pose increasing

         21  health risks to the Sanitation workers who toss them

         22  into their packer trucks, or who unload these trucks

         23  in the closed confines of transfer stations, just as

         24  they create these risks now for waste handlers in

         25  the commercial sector.
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          2                 Anyone working in an office or

          3  sitting in a school classroom has a potentially

          4  acute exposure even if only one of these lamps is

          5  broken; the volatized mercury gas could far exceed

          6  the permitted OSHA levels, thus posing a serious

          7  health risk to anyone who inhales it.  Improper

          8  clean up can cause further complications to human

          9  health and the environment.

         10                 Many states, municipalities and

         11  government agencies, including New York State and

         12  the Port Authority have recycling programs for these

         13  materials; however, to the best of my knowledge, no

         14  city agency, including our public schools, have such

         15  programs in place.

         16                 We would welcome the opportunity to

         17  work with the Council in developing comprehensive

         18  mercury legislation.  We would be pleased to answer

         19  any questions you may have or to meet the Council's

         20  staff at a convenient time.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 (Hearing concluded at 12:00 p.m.)

         23

         24

         25
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, PAT WTULICH, a Notary Public in

         10  and for the State of New York, do hereby certify

         11  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         12  of the within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 28th day of February 2001.

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

                                   ---------------------

         24                          PAT WTULICH
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          9            I, PAT WTULICH, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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